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Review report on consolidated interim financial statements

To the Board of Directors of Contact Financial Holding (formerly known as Sarwa Capital
Holding for Financial Investments) (S.A.E)

Introduction :

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated interim statement of financial position of
Contact Financial Holding (formerly known as Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments) -an
Egyptian joint stock company- as of 30 June 2021, and the related consolidated interim statements of
income, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the six- months period then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these interim financial statements in accordance
with the Egyptian Accounting Standards. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these interim
financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with Egyptian Standard on Review Engagements (2410),
“Review of Interim Financial Statements Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity." A
review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters in the company and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
Egyptian Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion on these consolidated interim financial statements.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying consolidated interim financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and cash flows for the six-months period then ended in accordance with the Egyptian
Accounting Standards.
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Explanatory paragraph

Without considering this as a qualification to our opinion, as detailed in Note No. (47) of the notes to
the financial statements, most countries around the world , including Egypt, were exposed to the
outbreak of the novel Coronavirus disease (Covid-19) whose impact extended until this date, and as
indicated in the aforementioned note , the Group’s Management is in the process of taking several
measures to encounter this risk and mitigate its impact on its financial position. The Group confirms
that the values of assets and liabilities presented in the financial statements were determined based on
the best estimate of the most recent data available therewith.

Cairo, 10 August ,2021.



Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at June 30,2021

Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

(In EGP)

Assets

Cash on hand and at banks
Loans and receivables
Investments in associates
Financial investments
Securitization surplus

Due from related parties
Debtors and other debit balances
Work in progress

Property plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Loans and overdrafts
Suppliers and other credit balances
Current tax liabilities

Other provisions

Lease liabilities

Insurance policyholders' rights
Deferred tax labilities

Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Paid-in capital

Reserves

Retained eamings

Equity attributable to the shareholders of

the parent company
Non-Controlling Interest
Total shareholders’ equity

Total shareholders' equity and liabilities

Note
No.
(31
(29)
(26)
(27)
(30)
(38)
(28)

(23)
(24)
(25)
2D

(35)
(36)

(39)
(37)

21)
(32)

(33)
(34)

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
130,489,977 133,775,238
2,753,411,083 2,402,166,654
33,053,887 44,904,478
1,106,158,013 1,184,308,078
21,992,203 29,507,782
19,753,950 23,319,698
450,106,146 261,933,306
19,439,263 15,622,874
150,512,426 135,726,350
458,115,559 -
25,302,524 25,302,524
255,709 301,313
5,168,590,740 4,256,868,295

1,769,944,159

1,344,965,348

323,301,045 307,252,388
71,809,576 131,983,385
23,055,877 34,543,171

435,981,620 ;

154,950,362 115,855,238
26,451,901 22,657,182

2,805,495,440 1,957,256,712

191,515,840 191,515,840

989,443 802 957,765,033

1,106,475,288 1,080,876,062
2,287,434,930 2,230,156,935

75,660,370 69,454,648
2,363,095,300 2,299 611,583
5,168,590,740 4,256,868,295

* The accompanying notes and accounting policies from page (6) to page (67) are an integral part of these
financial statements and are to be read therewith.

Mohamed Said
Financial Manager

Cairo August 10, 2021

Limited Review Report "Attached"

Ayman El Sawy

Chief Financial Officer

gl

Said Zater
Chief Executive Officer



Translation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Consolidated Statement of Income for the period ended June 30,2021

For the six months For the three months

(In EGP) Note No, 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Sales revenue - goods and services (8) 134,537,815 1,722.600,795 18,708,577 882,280,417
Income from financing activities (% 212,919,079 220,976,113 102,566,854 87,767,066
Securitization Gain (1D - 116,203,692 - 657,427
Interest income (cash surplus) 43,135,008 55,297,623 21,457,363 23,251,903
Interest income (cash surplus insurance) 8,487227 7,984,725 4,415,006 3,407,223
Surplus from insurance activities (15) 20,796,051 4,859,073 6,741,453 10,957,287
Biscounting Gain (12) 49,359,456 44,698,540 33,427 266 44,698,540
Sukuk Gain (13) 134,808,152 - 74,592,444 -
Portfolio management fees (securitization () 44,178,831 47,623,168 20,519,635 25,484,504
issuances)
Portfolio management fees (discounting (14-2) 17,109,232 ) 8,233,678 A
issuances)
Fortfolio ~ management  fees (143) 8,483,062 - 8,483,062 :
issuances)
Fee income (17 45,661,625 24,698,269 24,784 855 11,901,055
Profit share from associates 20 12,143,808 13,405,307 5,293,844 2,738,377
Portfolio management fees from associates 2,814,169 2,768,023 1,351,945 780,217
Net revenue from portfolio transfer 1,810,823 5,287,528 715,082 2,297.875
Other operating revenue 3,523,675 1,767,649 1,951,160 793,484
Other revenue 8,236,899 1,200,637 2,365,262 110,388
Income from mutual funds (life insurance) 1,048,825 - 640,925 -
Portfolio management fees (14-4) 125,000 105,000 (900,668) 50,000
Total Revenue 749,178,737 2,269,476,142 335,347,743 1,097,215,763
Cost of sales - goods and services (10) (113,475.049) (1,708,290,624) (5,558,614) (876,503,102)
General and administrative expenses (19) (203,313,830) (147,653,889) (104,766,313) (71,691,975)
Interest expense (69,452,400) 106,107,747y (38,302,876) (43,479,313)
Interest expense (lease liability) (7,230,652) - (6,128,445) -
Sales and distribution expense (26,731,621) (13,656,354) (15,334,805} (6,175,573)
ESOP expenses (12,062,482) (8,085,420) (6,031,241) (4,047,960)
Impairment of financial assets (431,565) (48,736,393) 833,695 (25,993,660)
Securitization Profit /(loss) (16) 293,474 (34,520,740) (467,141} (3,002,484)
Operating expense (18) (5,951,667) 4,002,512y (3,358,137) (1,882,441)
Sukuk early payment expense (4,870,197) - (4,870,197) -
Contingent provision 2,588,549 (3,779,943) 1,053,381 (1,606,621)
Insurance services Cost (2,189,048) (2,084,060) (194,073) {754,608)
Board of directors’ allowances (525,000 (255,000) (206,000 (115,000)
Foreign currency differences 104,566 (32,808) 30,074 1,180
Total Expenses (443,246,922) (2,077,205,492) (183,300,692) (1,035,251,559)
Net profit for the peried before tax 305,931,815 192,270,650 152,047,051 61,964,204
Income tax (21 (78,176,293) (59,165,326) (39,067,708) (22,643,445)
Net profit for the period after tax 227,755,522 133,105,324 112,979,343 39,320,759
Distributed as follows:
Owners of the company 218,358,568 126,907,763 109,068,130 36,248,936
Non-controlling interest 9,396,954 6,197 561 3,911,213 3,071,823
227,755,522 133,105,324 112,979,343 39,320,759
Earnings per share for the period 22) 0.19 0.11 0.09 0.03

* The accompanying notes and accounting policies from page (6} to page {67) are an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read

therewith.



Translation of the Financial Statements

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Tnvestments previously)

Originally Issued in Arabic

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period ended June 30,2021

(In EGP)

Net profit for the period after income tax

Other comprehensive income items that is or may be
reclassified to the profit or loss

Fair value reserve - Financial instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (debt instruments):

Financial instruments at fair value - Net change in fair value
through other comprehensive income

Tax impact related to other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to the profit or loss

Total other comprchensive income items for the period, after
tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Total comprehensive income distributed as follows:

Owners of the company

Non-controlling interest

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
227,755,522 133,105,324
15,627,940
(3.467,885) )
12,160,055 )
239,915,577 133,105,324
231,410,059 126,907,763
8,505,518 6,197,561
239,915,577 133,105,324

* The accompanying notes and accounting policies from page (6) to page (67) are an integral part of these

financial statements and are to be read therewith.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended June 30,2021

Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic
Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)

(In EGP)

Note No. 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the period before taxes 305.931,815 192,270.650
Adjustments for
Property, plant and equipment depreciation (23) 14,309,875 10,556,371
Right of use assets depreciation 15,088,175 -
Impairments of financial assets 431,565 48,736,393
Tmpairment of goodwill 1,171,546
Profit from right of use assets disposals 650,139 -
Interest income (cash surplus) (31.622,235) (63.282,348)
Interest expense 76,683,052 106,107,747
Net revenue from portfolio transfer (1,810,823) -
Sukni Gain (134,808,152) (116,203,692)
Discounting gain {49,355.456) (44,698,540)
Profit share from associates {12,143,808) {13.405.307)
ESOP expenses 12,002,482 3,085.433
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment (200,000} -
Contingent provision {2.588,549) 3,779,945

172,624,084 133,11%,198
Changes in:
Accounts receivable (2.650,895,761) (1,713.635,221)
Proceeds from sale of receivable portolios 2,500,826.800 1,851,491,504
Suppliers and other credit balances (12,483.958) (111.239.482)
Debtors and other debit balances (167.106,133) (80,580,725)
Related parties-debit 3,565,748 22,982,259
Related parties-credit (244.191)
Insurance policyholders' rights 39,085,124 34,455,250
Surplus of securitization process 7.515.579 23,605,885
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities (106,862,557) 159,953,477
Financing interest paid (95.907.508)
Inceme tax payment (137,977,664) (95.127,561)

Net cash (nsed in) operafing activities

(244,840,221)

(31.081,592)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase property, plant and equipment 23 {29,584,329) (20.358.902)
Proceeds frem sales of property, plant and equipment 688,378 50,218
Works in progress (3,816,389) (7.638,354)
Finaacial investments 78,150,065 115,092,995
Disposal of investments te non-controlling interest 4,900,000 -
Proceeds from interest revenue 27,980,641 25,103,357
Investment in associates 23,994,360 44,778,047
Net cash provided by investing activities 102,312,726 161,027,361
Cash flows from finapcing activities
Paid dividends {173.755.454) (58.855,252)
Payments of lease liabilities (42,528,022} -
Proceeds from banks and overdrafis 355,526,411 46,598,220
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 139,238,895 {12,257.032)
Net change in cash and cash equivalent during the period (3.288,600) 117,688,737
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 133,930,653 126,623,828
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 130,642,093 244,312,565
Cash and cash equivalents represented as follows:
Banks ~ Current accounts 77,286,334 117.688,737
Cash on hand 13,221,400 126,623,828
Time deposits 40,134,359 -

136,642,093 244,312,565

* The accompanying notes and accounting policies from page (6) to page {67) arc an integral part of these financial stafements and are to be read therewith,



Translation of the Financial Statements
Originally Tssued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.F) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

Contact financial holding (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments (S.A.E) previously)
Notes to the translated consolidated financial statements
For the period ended June 30,2021

1. Reporting entity
1-1 Legal Entity and Activity

- Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments (S.A.E) an Egyptian joint stock company was
established pursuant to Law No: 159 for year 1981 and its executive regulations as amended by
law No. 3 for year 1998 and was registered in the commercial register under No. 37933 on
March 30th 2009.

- The Company’s name was changed according to the decision of the Extraordinary General
Assembly Meeting held on June 12 2017 to become “Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial
Investments” and annotation was made to this effect in the commercial register of the company
under number 78317 on March 18 2018 in addition the legal entity of the company changed
from being subjected to law No. 159 for year 1981 to be subject to the provisions of Capital
Market Law No.95 for year 1992.

- The Company’s name changed pursuant to the resolution of the Extraordinary General
Assembly Meeting held on February 15, 2021 to be “Contact Financial Holding” and changed
in the Company’s commercial register on March 28,2021.

1-2 Purpose of the group

- The Group’s purpose is represented in participating in the establishment or the capital increase
of companies that issue securities in accordance with the applicable laws and regulation
provided that the license necessary for practicing such activities must be obtained. The Group
may have an interest or participate in any manner with companies and other entities practicing
similar activities or that may assist the Group in achieving its purpose in Egypt or abroad. The
Group may also merge into the said entities purchase them or affiliate them thereto according
to the provisions of law and its executive regulations.

- The following schedule determines the subsidiaries of Contact financial Holding along with the
ownership (control) percentage over these companies which are consolidated as part of the
consolidated financial statements as at June 30, 2021:



Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30,2021

Control percentage

Company Name Direct Indirect
Contact Credit 99.999% ‘ -
Sarwa Asset Management 99.96% -
Sawa Payment Systems 50.997% -
Contact Leasing 99.9998% -
Contact Factoring 74.99% 25%
Sarwa Insurance 84.980% -
Sarwa Life Insurance 75.090% -
Sarwa Promotion and Underwriting 99.996% -
Sarwa sukuk 99.98% -
*Contact Mortgage Finance - 99.9998%
*Wadi Degla Financial - 50%
*Modern Finance - 50%
*Get Go Credit Service - 99.9996%
*Contact Insurance Brokerage - 80%
*Sarwa Securitization - 99%
*Capital Real Estate - 99.7%
*Contact Egyptian International Motor Credit - 50%
*Contact Specialized Consulting 1% 99%
*SMG Auto credit - 50%

* Represent the ownership percentage of Contact credit in its subsidiaries which are indirectly
controlled by Contact Financial Holding. ‘

2- Basis of Accounting

e The consolidated financial statements were prepared according to the Egyptian Accounting
Standards and relevant Egyptian laws and regulations.

® This is the first set of the Group’s financial statements in which standard No. (48) Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and standard No. (49) Lease Contracts were applied.

® The Board of Directors approved the issuance of the translated consolidated financial statements
on August 10, 2021,

3- Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pound which represents the

Group's functional currency.



Translation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

4- Use of Judgments and Estimates

- The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Egyptian
Accounting Standards requires Management to make professional judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and
other various factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

- The Judgments and Estimates are reviewed periodically. Review of estimates are recognized
prospectively.

- Changes to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate changes if
the change affects only that period or in the year of the change and future periods if the change
affects both current and future periods.

- Classification of Financial Assets: assessment of the business model through which the assets
are held, and assessment is made regarding whether the contractual terms of the financial asset
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding amount (SPPI).

- Establishing criteria for determining whether the credit risk associated with the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating
forward-looking information into the measurement of ECL, selecting and approving of models
used to measure expected credit losses ECL..

Expected credit losses
- The accounting estimates and judgments related to the impairment of Financial Assets is a

critical accounting estimate because the underlying assumptions used can change from period
to period and may significantly affect the Group’s results of operations.

-In aé.sessing assets for impairments, the Management’s judgment is required particularly in
projecting future economic information and scenarios where circumstances of economic and
financial uncertainty exist as developments and changes to expected cash flows can occur both
faster and with less predictability. The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing
may differ from the estimates used by Management and consequently may cause actual losses

that differ from reported allowances.



Translation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

5- Changes in Accounting Policies

- On March 28, 2019 the Minister of Investment and International Cooperation introduced
amendments to some of the existing accounting standards including issuance of new standards
and amendments to some of the existing standards.

- The Group has adopted the New Egyptian Accounting standard No. (48) Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and standard No. (49) Lease Contracts according to the transition
method applied by the Group and the comparative information were not restated.

5-1 Standard No. (48) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Standard No. (48) Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaced
EAS 11 Revenue, EAS 8 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. Under Standard
No. (48) Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised when a customer
obtains control of the goods or services. Determining the timing of the transfer of control —at a
point in time or over time- requires judgement.

The Group has adopted Standard No. (48) Revenue from Contracts with Customers using the
cumulative effect method (without practical expedients), with the effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial application (January 1, 2021). Accordingly, the
information presented for 2020 has not been restated. it is presented, as previously reported,
under EAS 8, EAS 11 and related interpretations. Additionally, the disclosure requirements in
Standard No. (48) Revenue from Contracts with Customers have not generally been applied to
comparative information.

The group applied Egyptian Accounting Standard 48, which resulted in amendments to some
of the financial statement balances. The group applied exemptions from the requirements for
re-presentation of contracts expiring before January 1, 2021 and applied Egyptian Accounting
Standard 48 only for contracts that were not completed on the date of initial application January
1,2021.

The following table summarizes the impact of the transition to Egyptian Accounting Standard 48

As at January 1, 2021 after

December 31, 2020 Adjustments adjustments
Deferred revenue 892,857 19,634,8 10 20,527,667
Retained earnings 1 080,876,062 (15,707,848) 1,065,168,214
Non-Controlling 69,454,648 (3,926,962) 65,527,686

Interest



Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

3-2 Egyptian Accounting standard No (49) Lease Contracts

Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies to all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group applied Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 49 on the date of its initial application
on January 1, 2021, with retrospective effect at the beginning of the initial application.

Details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below: -

A, Definition of a lease contract

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or contains a
lease under Egyptian Accounting standard No (20). Under Egyptian Accounting standard No
(49), the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a

lease, as explained in Note 46-9,

On transition to Egyptian Accounting standard No (49), the Group elected to apply the practical
expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. It applied Egyptian
Accounting standard No (49) only to contracts that were previously identified as leases.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under Egyptian Accounting standard No (20) were
not reassessed for whether there is a lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under Egyptian
Accounting standard No (49) was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2021.

B. Asalessee

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating, or finance leases based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. Under Egyptian Accounting standard No
(49), the Group recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these
leases are on-balance sheet.

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2021. Right-
of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments Related to the lease recognized in the statement of
financial position immediately prior to the date of initial application.

The Group used the following practical expedients ‘when applying Egyptian Accounting
standard, no (49) to leases previously classified as operating leases under Egyptian Accounting

standard No (20) in particular:
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— Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

— Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial

application.

— Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with Iess

than 12 months of lease term.

— Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with the
value of the underlying asset is small.

— Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend

or terminate the lease.

C. The impact on the financial statements:

When measuring lease liabilities, the Group discounted lease payments using its incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2021.

The following is a summary of the impact of the initial application:

As at December Adiustments As at January
31,2020 ACLHSIRAE 1.2021

Assets
Right of use assets - 234,761,482 234,761,482
Prepaid expenses 46,390,067 (2,574,887) 43,815,180
Liabilities
Lease liability contracts - - 232,186,595
Lease liability contracts
Lease liability as at December 31,2020 407,051,680
Discounting with the group incremental borrowing rate (174,865.085)

Lease liability contracts as at January 1,2021 232,186,595
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6- Fair value measurement

A. Valuation Models

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

— Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable
from market data.

— Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable (which the group minimize its use as much as possible).
This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are
not observable, and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect differences between the instruments.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models comparison
with similar instruments for which observable market prices exist and other valuation models.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest
rates credit spreads and other premiums used in estimating discount rates security prices and
foreign currency exchange rates.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the
price that would be received to sell the asset at the measurement date.

The availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in the financial
markets.

For more complex instruments the group uses in-house valuation models. Some or all of the
significant inputs into these models may not be observable in the market and may be derived
from market prices or rates or estimated based on assumptions. Examples of instruments
involving significant unobservable inputs include certain instruments for which there is no

active market. Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a degree

12
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of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management
judgement and estimation are usually required for the selection of the appropriate valuation
model to be used the determination of the probability of counterparty default and prepayments
and selection of appropriate discount rates.

Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors such as liquidity
risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the group believes that a third-party market
participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction. Fair values reflect the credit
risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the group
entity and the counterparty when appropriate. |

Model inputs and values are calibrated against historical data and published forecasts and where
possible against current or recent observed transactions in different instruments and against
market quotes. This calibration process is inherently subjective, and it vields ranges of possible
inputs and estimates of fair value. Management uses judgement to select the most appropriate

point in the range,

B. Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value — Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized.

The amounts are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial position. The fair
values include any deferred differences between the transaction price and the fair value on initial

recognition when the fair value is based on a valuation technique that uses unobservable inputs.

Level of Fair Valuation
Financial Assets 30 June 2021 31 December 2020 Naluie Techniques and

Main Entries

EGP EGP
Debt instrument ted prices/oth
eoL InsHuments 1,096,012,745 1174,162.819 First/Second  2Oted prices/other
measured at FVOCI valuation techniques
Loans and receivables
1,813,673,713 1,680,318,807 Third Discounted cash flow

measured at FVOCI
Due to the absence of active markets for certain securities observable market inputs were used

along with the available information to measure their fair values.
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C. Unobservable Inputs Used in Measuring Fair Value

The following table sets out information about significant unobservable inputs used as at June

30, 2021 in measuring financial instruments categorized as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Type of Financial

Instrument

Fair values as at

June 30 2021

Valuation

Technique

Significant Unobservable Input

Loans and receivables
measured at FVOCI

1,813,673,713

Discounted cash

flow

¢ Risk-adjusted discount rate.
e Probability of default.
¢ Expected early payment rate.

» Transaction cost.

Significant Unobservable Inputs Are Developed as Follows:

- Expected early payment rates are derived from historical client carly payment trends

after being adjusted to reflect current conditions.

- The probabilities of defaults and loss severities of commercial assets derived from

historical data and collection performance are adjusted according to the current

conditions,

- Risk adjusted spreads are derived from historical defaults and prepayment trends are

adjusted to reflect the current conditions.

- Transaction costs are derived from historical trends after being adjusted to reflect the

current conditions.

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate the use of different

methodologies or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value.

14



ST

LTSSSLILTT ETTTISL8T GOE'E00°661 61 C0CTT (£95'E0E) ORR 0SS SOEPITD 797 659°ET 026°STLT O0T0°T09°05T
PS606E°6 BIFEETS 9ESE9T Y G0T°LST IEC°LO 591 €1 [ c1 Z59°BEG'E Isaranut SUITONUO])-TON
§96°85€°81T $6LBI9°EE ELL'GEL'PEL 01 8pT° 11 e0‘1LE) ITL085Y TSEPITG [1Z°659°€C S06°5TLT 89€°799°0F1 Aweduioo oy} Jo s1eUm()
SMO[[0} §% PRGNS
TTS'SSLLTT EYTTSLBT 60E°C00°661 GIP'S0STT {E95°E0£) 985 055"y S9EFOT' Z9T'6S9°ET 026°STLT 0Z0°Y09°0ST x8) 3313k pogaad aup aoy 17oad 8
(E6T'OLI'8L) (9ZL79%8°E) (LOS'6TEwL) ($1£7956'7) (£9Z°cZL%0) (£55°099°T) (Z18°96L°C) (875°116°L) (£81'07) (T19°ese’1s) XgJ, aurosu]
SIS IEG'S0E 6E6°B6STE LY TEEELT FELTOF P 00LTTFY GEFLITY LLTT90°0T 06L°0LS'TE SH-TSL'T TES'E58°T0Z X€) 31033q poad ayy 107 3goxd yaN
(ZT6'9FT Crr) (PTLETEPI) (861°CT6°8TF) (S50°011°51) {RT1'€E9°67) {956°610"6) (800°E6L°55) (1S0°050°Fp) 95€°70L°E (9SE°ETH'708) sasuadxy jero ],
99€° 301 995501 - - - - - - - - $30UAIBIHIp Adlalmy T1ai0,]
{000°sz5) - (000'sz8) (oo0‘zL) (006°09€) - - (000°es) - - S30UBMO]E SI0I0AND JO PISog
(810°681°7) - (8r0°681°2) - - - - - - (3+0°%681°7) 1500 §291AJAS PoUBMST]
675°385°C (16£°219) 0P6°00T°E (06z°65) (LE9°F63) (L8108 e’y (s0Z°761) {=9)] SE070tY uorsiaoxd ysguguory
(L61°DLE"Y) - (L61°0L8') - - - - - - (26T°0L8Y) asmadya yuemAedard ynyng
(£99°156°) - {£99°156'5) - {ssz'TT51) - (ETrP3T) (oLi'coL) (€E19'L1) (909°€EE°E) ssuadxe Suneredo
Viv'E6T - PLV'E6T - FLF'E6T - - - - - S50 /101 UCTIRZRunoag
(s95°1E8) (E1T°089'1) H9RPTT {Tiv'er) £LT8RET (sregcre) (£eg'ss1) T06°1€T L6B GOS Y (0IZ'91°7) FI98SE [R1OURUY Jo Jusmmreduy
(zet*oo0zT) - (z8+ 790°C) - - - (Fs0666°C) - - (32r°£90°9) sasuadys JOST
1z9'1£L°97) - (179°1€L97) - - - {0LL°S6F) (£69°p6L) - (BT 18F°5T) asuadxs UCHRGLISIP PUE S3[eg
(2e9°0£T°L) (T£9°¢Ly) (120°L5L°0) (£$8°L95F) - - (6EP°6S) - - (67L6T1°T) (Aarmiqer 1oenw0a asee]) ssuadxa 1samsyuy
(00r st 69) - (00v'Tsv'en) (£96'9¢7) - (6£9°5T9°6) (9eT*288°61) (0%9'£68°%E) (£L1'165) {69L°L8b°8) asuadxa Jsa1auy
(pEg‘E1E€07) (8L0°T06°01) (TS 11v'z61) {Liv'6TE's) (£96°L€1°5T) (S¥L7cTT) (£80°LE8°01) (s09‘061°9} (00L°89¢) {SL1zeciasn) sasuadxs aAnEnSMIpE PUE [EraUaD)
(6H0°SLr'EIT) {LL6°658) (CLo°s19'21D) (000°128) - - - - - (TLOP6LTIT) S20AIOE e SpoOT - Sa[Es JO 3807 -
LEL'SLT6YL £99°T776°0p FLO9ST T0L 68LTLS 6T LTIPSOTE S6€ 1£TST SBI'PSRSH IFR9TT0L (156°6¥6) L86°99T°F0S IMUIAIL [EJO,],
000°5Z1 - 000°6Z1 - - - - - - 000°5Z1 53] JUaaSeURUr OOTIO
STSSHO'T SERRHO°L - - - - - - - - (sounInsu] QYIf) SPUNE [BOjtUT RO AurcaT]
B68°9ET'S - 668°9¢2°8 6L0°149 000°00% S0ETTTT 120°31T - §eLor 6£8°809°9 oniIaAal 1910
SL9ETSE - SLYETLE - T4 - OP6'STT 0S5'ELS"T ETL PIFS0Z'T anueAal Supessdo 10
£28°018°T - £29°018°1 £73°018°1 - - - - - - Ia]suen ofopIed WO ANUSASI JaN
6OTFIB'T - 89TFIRL - - - - - - 60T°PIS'T SSIE[O0SSE WO £33] TUSAFTRURT G OFI0]
S08°EF1'2L - 208°€L 1771 08°eF°TI - - - - - - SAJBII0SSE WIOL TBYS JIJOI]
ST 159y 6T P9 961°610°Cr - 708'6¥ 959°156°] L8§°TSLT 1$8RTLE - OLE9ES LE SWDIN 99,]
90'e3r'8 - TO0°ERT's - 681" LyL - - - - €LSCEL'L (S20UENSS] FA{AS) 599 HAMATEME OATHG]
ZET'BOT LI - ZETG0T'LY - - - - - - CETBOTLT (saouenss) Suyunoosip) s9ay JUswIaFeuets ofjoJHO
LERRLIPH - LES8LI T - L1609¢°LT - - - - FI6°L18°01 (s30uBNSS] MOREZNLNDAS) Sao) ISRt FenRwW 1705110
ZEI'808°FEL - TETB0REL - - - - - - TSI'808FST upen yayng
9SH 65 b - 9CH 6SE 68 - - - - - - 05 65 G urery Sonunoosiy
[S0°96L°0Z 160°06.L°07 - - - - - - - - SenIADOE souBIMSUE woxy sndmg
LTTL8Y] LTT'L8Y'] - - - - - - - - (soueansur snydins 1s29) SUTOSHY JSAIepI]
BO0SELSE - B00°SET'EV 0LF'0SER 161°086°C 6ETTRI'S 060°396°S [16'896°F PEY11Z CLFEDL'ST (suycans gses) smoout ysarayug
6L0°615°21T - GLO'G16°T1T - - S6T'GLR'L LS 689°LE 6ES°$56'69 (g9 asz7 1) 08E°6¥9°C01 SIRTAYIR FUDUEBL] WOy suroou]
STSLESPET [E1'8P6'CT ¥89686'811 609°C6L - - - - - SLOWELTTT S301AKSS pue 5pood - anusas) sojeg
% ns Spod:
(o) @MHH.HMW Ty a.sm_“_hx;sm TATOTSET FEEETO O R T E.w_;_w_u LT R T T20¢ 08 sunf

S)UIBUISAS Buneddey -/,

20T “0¢ ounf wo papuo poriad o) J0J SIUSWIRLS [RIOUETT ] PRIBPIOSTO)) 21)) 0) §310N
(Arsnoraard symonnsaau] juroueur] 10y Supjoy Tende)) emtes) (Fv's) Smplol [euruL] 1081U07)

JIBIV UT panss] A[Jeuisi))
Sitatuotely TRIOURUL] SY) JO UOLE[SUBI],




PLE S EET 0IF°68E'S1 PI6SILLTT EPTLLEEL (006'F51°27) 1£5°99Z°L 198°156 (ES1°0LE°TD) 086°LTLE TSE CEE BT
195'261°9 880°CE9'T ELF IS E FIEZ01 8LE'IPE o011 [# (4] £Z 69F"0Z1E 501U BUIT[OFREO)-EON]
E9L°L06°9TT TCEDSLTT W 1STHTL GTLPLEEL (BLZ'96¥°ZC) [TFe9T'L 658°158 (OET'OLE'TIT) LEG'LIL'S £88°TIT'OTL Aueduros ot Jo sIoUMD
SMOJ[0) ST pAINgLISIT
PIESOIEET 01 6RE'ST FL6STLLIT EPTLLEEL (006°PST°ZT) 1€5°997°L [98°IS6 (€81°0L°TT) 0BG°LILS TSE'EEEErt X1 13)J8 polrad o) X0y yyoxd pap
(oz£'59E65) 1s‘ok+'e) (S18'%TL95) (698°10EY) (16L°59t°9T) (T9L°L8TT) (epL6K0°T) (Ezl'0Ly) (89L'60L° 1) (65E°0r3°05) XeJ, Su0auy
0S9°0LT°T6T 1T6°678°LT G6TL OFPFPLL ZILGLT BT {601°689°S) £6TPSSE P00 1097 (0£0°906°0T) BPLLTYL TLLELTPET Xe} axajaq porsad aiy yoy ygoad jeN
(T6¥'SOTLLOD) (FP0°169°9) (BEP IS 0L07T) {ZE€E8ER 1) (556" 066°5) (BE0°E09°0T) {088°€00'8E) (S1T°98€°09) (PTI‘E59°59) T00°610°C08° 1) sasuadxy [wio],
(g08°zE) (0£8°c) 790°¢ 790°¢ - - - - - - SAOURIAIIP ASTANND USII0]
(000°557) - (000°550) (boo‘og) (000°sze) - - - - - S30TWRMO[ 51030211 1O pIeod
{090°F80°7) - {000°+80°7) - - {06£°0ZL) - - - {(+99°€9¢°1) 1507) SA0IAIRE SoUBINST]
{sra'6LL ) (021357} (5LL1TEE) (z93'88) (Lzr'ss1’n) {9z6°29) {z1s' oD (LeT'or Dy (Fr1°6€) (Lr0'168°T) uors1aoxd Jedunwey)
(T157z00') {169°2£1) (128'+98°c) {6TL30P) - - (roL0sT) (L7869} (E0Z¥v18°T) (8sesst) asuadxe Fmesado
(oFL 0TS vE) - (opL70TEFE) - (OFL0ZSPE) - - - - - (ssor)/ 1goId woPRZRLNIRg
(E6£'9¢L°8%) - (E6£9£L°3%) (690°1t) (LE1°8L1°G) (Teg'opeL) (199'¢19°8) (+89°€62°90) (61¥°591) (165 %01) S}osse [eLourmy Jo atredmy
(0TF'580°S) - (0zr'$80°8) - - - (626%T5"5) - - (15095} sosuadxs JOSH
(bsE950°ET) - (reEf950°E1} Fo+'D) - (©r0°g) (6Et'607) (850'Fp1) (FeL'9zD) (629'69L°21) osuadxe TONNALISIP puB $3TBS
(L¥L*L0190T) - (e¥L°20T'901) (91zZ°L89°C) - (FrL o8Y 2L (LEO'BPL LT} {9€r°550°¢E) (986°041°€} {8TESHO°LE) asuadxo ysazomy
(688°€59'Lt1) (0Ts'6LLy) (69EPLRTHI} (rirLeo'en (156°395°¢ 1) {(0or‘e67) (859572} {956°21£'9) {00+°20£'T) {00£'865°001) sosuadx2 JANBOSIUTUIPE DR [RISUSL)
(F29°067°30L'T) (E6L6LFT) (IE8DIR*00L T} (000°1270°s) - - - - (RET657°85) (E6S'OEC EPS 1) SIDIAISE PUE SPOOE - S3[ES JO 1507)
THTOLY 69T°T S96°07SFT LLT'SS6" PP T PP LET 0F [T (T IEE'LST 6T +R8°FOT OF 880°081°sS LB 080°EL TILB1°956°T INUIADT T8I0 ],
000'501 - 200°c01 - - - - - - 000501 503 JUSLISBYIRNT OlORI0S
LES'00Z'1 TS6°L $89Eal'T PEESTI - - LBLBTL - S05‘6 6£0°E56 SNUIAT JOTI0)
GrOL9L - GF9LOL - - - 005°8¢ 65L°TIS'] 06£'91Z - anuaal Surjesado LIO
9IS LRT'S - 8T LYTS - - - - - - RTSIRT'S Jajsuen offoFiod weif snuassl 19N
CTOROLZ - £T0°R9L'T - - - - - - £TOROLT SARIOOSSE WOX) S99 JUDMRSeUeW OfoJ1IoJ
LOESOPET - LOE'SOVEL LOE'SOPEL - - - - - - S$2JBII0S5E WOIY areys JIor]
697°869°FT 9P0°161 ETTLOS YT - 0EL'E6T LOS'8FL 91925+ 00898411 - 0LI*PSTIT SUIOUT 29
B91°6TH LY - 8OV°ETY Ly - 891'€ET9°LY - - - - . (soomensst
UONBZIIING5S) $29) JomaSeuem ofoplrog
OFS869" v - OPE 369 Y - - - - - - 05 369" v wen Sunmoossy
£LO'658Y ELH658'Y - - - - - - - - SIMIATIOR 20ULINSUT WO snjding
STLPRG'L STLPRE'L - - - - - - - - (eourinsur snydins TsED) OUICOUL ISIHM]
LT9°LAT'SS ~ £T9LET'SS 896°ERT'LT 2HSGRE'T 019°BFR'E RETTLE'E D8ITLE'E 887°1+0 [SLE6LET (sndms fsz0) swroouy jsaranuy
69°E07°911 - Z69°€02°91 1 - - - - - - T63E0TO11 e TOolBZNimNIeg
£11°9L6°0ZT - E11°9L6°07E - - FIT095'FC £TL'OT0OE 67E9ER ‘S 1SFPE6°ET 9LEBGSLE $SSNTANOR SUDURTE TIOY) SW0SI]
S&LON9TTL Y GOLRLFTT 9THTTITILT S6L'TEEG - - - - BETHST'RE CA50ESERI°T S30IAISS PUE SPOOT - SNWAASL $3fRg

~ Fgexaoag —
Ho¥ms furseay Spon: [ —
[E30], ERCA T EA Mﬁ_n:—ﬁ:m [¥30], m.-m:muo FPUONEZHINGG Mﬂmhouum.m @Muwtaz Io%ﬁ-“ g—u—._m%u INUEUL 1B 0707 "0€ 2unyp
adueInsuy ! T
1Z0Z ‘0 aunyf o papu2 porrad oy 10} SJUSTINE]S [RIDUBUL] PRIEPI[OSUO]) oY) 0] SOJON
(Asnorasid syusunsaau] [eroueul] 10f Surpjoy penden eMIES) (V" S} SUIp[Of] [eIoueUL,] 1DBIU0:)
OIqPIY U ParnissT A[BuisL)

STUSUIRIe}S [RIDURT] 27 JO UONB[SUBL],



Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

8- Sales revenue - goods and services

For six months

For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Goods sold 111,794,075 1,701,789.832 4,135,965 875,803,965
Service Rendered 22,743,740 20.810.963 14,572,612 6,476,452
Total 134,537,815 1,722,600,795 18,708,577 882,280,417

Contact Credit Company S.A.E. (Previously called Contact Auto Credit)- a subsidiary of Sarwa Capital
Group — received the first consumer finance license by virtue of which the Company shall be subject
to the provisions of Law No. 18 of the year 2020 instead of the Companies Act No. 159 of the year 1981
therefore accounting was made based on the Company’s activity and its purpose consequently revenues
from goods sold pertaining to Contact Credit Company - with a total amount of EGP 3,121,343,011 were
not recognized for the period starting from January 1, 2021 until June 30, 2021 taking into account that
goods sold and services rendered were not derecognized from the previous periods.

9- Income from Financing Activities

For six months

For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Auto credit 77,333,593 95,087,164 30,195401 24,841,647
Mortgage 37,727,067 36,026,722 19,521,827 17,671,368
Factoring 7.875,294 24,560,215 4,913,682 16,470,283
Leased assets contracts 65,955,539 48,836,349 34,714,760 22,026,100
Consumer goods instalments 22,783,322 13,954,451 12,741,311 6,328,316
Others ' 1,244,264 2,511,212 479,873 429,352
Total 212,919,079 220,976,113 102,566,854 87,767,066

10- Cost of Sales - Goods and Services

For six months

For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Cost of goods sold 111,794,072 1,701,789,830 4,135,965 875,803,964
Cost of services rendered 1,680,977 6,500,794 1,422,649 699,138
Total 113,475,049 1,708,290,624 5,558,614 876,503,102

17



Translation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

Contact Credit Company S.A.E. (Previously called Contact Auto Credit)- a subsidiary of
Sarwa Capital Group — received the first consumer finance license by virtue of which the
Company shall be subject to the provisions of Law No. 18 of the year 2020 instead of the
Companies Act No. 159 of the year 1981 therefore accounting was made based on the
Company’s activity and its purpose consequently the cost of goods sold pertaining to Contact
Credit Company - with a total amount of EGP 3,121,343,011 was not recognized for the
period starting from January 1, 2021 until June 30,2021 taking into account that goods sold
and services rendered were not derecognized from the previous periods.

11- Securitization Gain

The item represents the value of the proceeds from securitization operations carried out by the
Group through the transfer of financial debts in return for the issuance of securitization bonds.
Under this transfer the risk and rewards of the transferred portfolios are transferred
substantially to the bondholders. The securitization gain is represented in the difference
between the securitization proceeds including the financing cost bome by the portfolio
transferor until subscription in bonds is closed and the book value of the assigned rights on the
date of the transaction.

12- Discounting Gain

The item represents the gain from discounting financial portfolios through the transfer of the
risks and rewards of the portfolios that were subject to discounting to financial institutions.
The discounting gain represent the difference between the proceeds of the discounting process
and the book value of the financial assets that were subject to discounting on the date of the
transaction.

13- Sukuk Gain

The item represents the value of the proceeds from issuing financial rights portfolios at present
value which were performed through the assignment of financial rights in return for issuing
Modaraba sukuk in compliance with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia law.
According to this assignment, the rights and obligations of the transferred portfolios are
substantially transferred to the sukuk holders. The sukuk profit is represented in the difference
between the fair value proceeds of the private sukuk and the group including the amounts in
return for the financing cost which were borne by the assignor of the portfolio until the process
of the sukuk subscription is closed and the present value of the rights assigned at the date of
the transaction.

14- Financial portfolios managed by the group:

14-1 Portfolio management (securitization issuance):
The Group manages the issued notes and the collections of the future cash flows related to the
transferred portfolios in retarn for management fees from the notes issued.

14-2 Portfolio management fees (discounting issuances):
The Group represented in Contact Credit Company transferred the financial rights in
receivables portfolios to the Arab African International Bank and both parties agreed that
Contact Credit Company acts as a collection agent in return for the specified management fees.

14-3 Portfolio management fees (sukuk issuances):
The Group represented in Contact Credit Company manages the issued Sukuk and the
collections of the future cash flow related to the issued portfolios and transfer them to the
project manager in return for administrative fees.

18



Translation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issned in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

14-4 Portfolio management fees:

Contact Financial collects the financial rights of the receivables of Sarwa Securitization
according to the portfolio management contracts with Sarwa Securitization then transferred to
the custody in return for monthly management fees for the issuances (twenty seventh, twenty
eighth, thirtieth, thirty second, thirty third and thirty fourth) an the total of these fees reached
EGP 125,000 at June 30,2021 compared to EGP 105,000 at June 30,2020.

The portfolios’ balance that the group manages are presented as follow:

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Discounting portfolios 1.685,898,809 548,784,586
2,923,993,547 3,696,335,497

Securitisation portfolios

Sukuk portfolios 1,639.895,653 -

6,249,788,009 4,245,120,083

15- _Surplus from Insurance Activities

For six months For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Direct premiums 254,282,572 131,322,012 129,574,625 56,559,137
Outward reinsurance premiums (75.835,642) (36,825,393) (37.917,365) (14.545,686)
PTO\.IISI.OH of unearnﬁjd premiums at 98.955.778 49,136,896 i (74,383)
beginning of the period
Provision of unearned premiums at

. 34,390, 174,655 544,22 .990,2
end of the period (134,390,869) (73,774 ) (20,544,229) (5.990.277)
Provision for outstanding claims at (32,676,930) (18114491)  (70426,102)  (28,596,927)
beginning of the period
Provision for outstanding claims at 37,749,174 10482436 70833225 28,890,871
end of the period
Outward refnsurance commissions 11,422,628 4,146,299 4,726,128 2,299,891
income
Investment income 1,666,780 1,918,962 858,547 906,488
Other operating income 3,184,696 1,978,427 1,757,287 964,753
Direct claims paid (98,395.626) (25152.147)  (55.680,401)  (12,949,468)
Less: outward reinsurance claims 39,462,509 7258785 23252922 4,207,733
income
Provision for retrograde
. . 3 48,223 ,03 )

fluctuations at end of the period (547.013) (848.223) (420.031) (848,223)
Direct commissions (30,346,539) (17.367.039) (18,612,678) (7,283,321}
Production costs (31.809.194) (11,415.095) (15.359.161) {6.6066,851)
General & administrative expenses (28,629,656) (22,066,081) (10,472,204} (9.717.422)
Impairment loss on receivable (2,178,231) (862,578) 633,703 731121
from insurance policyholders
Nt income from designated 8,885,614 5,044,958 4,537,187 3,069,851
mvestments
Surplus from Insurance activity 20,796,051 4,859,073 6,741,453 10,957,287
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Transiation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E} (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

16-

17-

18-

Securitization Profit / (Loss)

Interest income from financial
portfolio

Proceeds from surplus of
investments at custody
Interest of bond loan and the

amortization of securitization cost

Insurance policy cost
Collector fees

Custody fees

Securitization portfolio acquisition

cost
Issuance fees

Securitization Profit / (Loss)

Fee Income

For six months

For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
303,136,012 349,810,593 140,421,852 176,157,013
20,675,270 22,505,688 9,713,863 8,565,041
(264.016,806) (319,523905)  (119,777.240) (156.669,908)
(13,469,961) (7,999,363) (9,549,955) (4,297,650)
(120,000} (105,000) (60,000) (50,000)
(2,384,393) (3,108,136) (1,092,168) (1,609,065)

- (29,664,371) - -

(43,527,248) (46,436,246) (20,123,493) (25,097,917)
293,474 (34,520.,740) (467,141} (3,002,484)

The revenues in return for administrative services rendered amounted to EGP 45,661,625 on June 30,2021
compared to an amount of EGP 24,698,269 on June 30, 2020 whereas a percentage of the value of the loan
granted to clients was collected as administrative fees to pay for the salesmen commissions and some of
the other administrative fees borne upon concluding the contract.

Operating Expenses

Rent expense

Experts fees

I-score fees

Other operating expenses
Total

For six months

For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
60,000 2,489,077 30,000 1,685,030
- 33,218 - -
3,293,429 692,986 2,480,039 177,210
2,598,238 787,231 348,098 20,201
5,951,667 4,002,512 3,358,137 1,882,441
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LT'ranslation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (8.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

19- General and Administrative Expenses

For three months

For six months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Salaries wages and medical Care 132,620,074 94,235,900 67,590,618 46,836,587
Insurance 2,689,243 2,221,526 1,029,674 892,792
g;;f:gggﬁm and equipment 14300875 10556371 7,573,710 5445379
Professional and consultant fees 8,680,090 8,018,250 4,207,778 4,054,889
Branches and cars rent 482,584 9,899,802 210,953 5,226,502
Bank charges 503,513 803,558 226,961 303,327
Advertising, administrative
expenses and stock exchange 810,158 2,613,389 239,614 1,114,395
renewal
Vehicles related expenses 843,754 522,865 576,030 300,656
Miscellaneous expenses 27,286,360 18,782,228 15,190,432 7,517,448
Right of use depreciation 15,088,179 - 7,920,543 -
Total 203,313,830 147,653,889 104,766,313 71,691,975

21



[44

808°EPI‘TL (STE‘681) - (PrrLTT) 0L669LT TP '89€ SSITTIE6 J)BI0SSE WOLF AXLTS JHOL]
[1 < & & 11 11 EOMﬂm.ﬂHE.ﬂﬁm
818°€99°C - - - STOSTY 2 AN 60£°661°C SPUSPIAIp 29599] JUSTF UL OOFLOg
066°LLY 6 (S1E°68T) - LT SP6tHE'T 856°97¢ P8 TTIL uonEuImm|a 210Jaq axeys Auedummo)
%66 6% %86 ¥ %6F %0b €€ %6t 2IBYS 510810

8ST'STE 61 (90L°8LE) (c6v'c6T)  (£8S°€0€) £09°S8L Y 916°8L6 IZF9€SH1 Xu) I93y% JJoxIJ 1N
(L59°916°S) (8¥i°ser) - - (SSLS6ET) (629787} (sZ11v0) $9XB] 2WO0oU]
SIS ThZsT (8SS°€8T) (€ob‘c67)  (£85°c0€) 8SETRIY SHSE9T1 ObS LLS ST SIX® ], 310jog] sSuruawyy
(960%0) - Gmoncv - - - - SIDUBIDIJTP ADUIIIND U310
OLSLEE'T - - - LS89T S9T 1Y 8¥¥F°69C°1 juetmniedul] 1988V [RIOURT]
(LS8°6ED) - - (1s8v1) (087'v7) (LsT'v) (65¥°96¢) SUOISIACIJ JUASUNU0))
(126°8£9°9) (€28°'126) (ce8Th9)  (1€8°999°) (zo0°891) (898°8¢E) (Z0s 006) saswadxy Fupered(
(585°985°¢) - - - (Lrr6erLT) - (8€1°L98°T) V¥D
(000°6LY'S) - - - {000°298) {000 vZ1) (000°88%"1) $33] JTomwaFeuRw OI[OJ1I0]
(08L'91€) - - - (ZT$'v6) (85701 (000217) sesuadxy Sunered PO
PRVTLE DY SOT'REL REFCSE 6T1°8LE"E TIRLT0'6 £99°669°T LLT‘TLYIST amodu] sunessd() [ejo],
000TS1T 000°8%S - 000°ST 000°LPT 000°6EL 000°€09 amosuy Sunerad(y 12010
SI9° 10TV - - - ¥S0°089°1 - 198 1ZH'T awoour 39
GOSLITPE S9Z°061 8Ep'SsE 6TI°€9E‘E 8SL00TL £99°096 919 LPI‘TT NJoIJ $50.15)
(L95°269°69T7) (121 (678F01°7) (985%L5D) - - (TE0VLE 09T) $0TAIOS pUE Poo3 - SIES JO 150D
(869'96£7) (€zs1) - - ($39°+89) (95€°€) (LT LOL 1) (snjdins yseo) asuadxy jsarouy
FSE 18001 - - - SLE6TET - G6LEISL L ures yyng
vS LIT 0T - - - 6£9°60T°T - S06°LS0°8 UIe3 SUNUNOIsi(]
TTTISHT 606°S61 - - 68L°SHTE 610096 SOSSHO‘S SaLTATIOR SULOURUL] WOIT STIOOT]
PI0TLE 69T - L9T09FT  SILLEG'S - - TEO'VLG'09T 8301ATaS pUR SPOOT - SNUDANY SoJeg

SIITALIS
b S3IIMAID IH—HMl
€30} 1P 10y w.m.wU > L A quiery Z74 RS P} aun
[ 3T€) TOTOIN 4 TELTEATY 1207 3unf ¢
WendATg A010TA]
S9JBII0SSE WG] QIS JJOLY -(7
[T0T “0E 2un{ U0 papus powad o1 J0] SJUIISIE)S [RISURI] P2IRPI[OSTO.} 3] 0] $2JON
(Arsnorazad SNIDWHSSAT] [eIoueur 10 Supjoy Teudey smaeg) {3V Fupjoy [BLOUBLL] 10RIU0D)
OLqeTy U1 Panss| A[[e0rsiI)

SYISUIS]E}S ETOUFTL] 31} JO UOTIE[SUEL]



£T

LOE'SO EL (S61°08) - 9€6°9TL 006°P6T°T L96°60E T 00L€TT'
9EH°S09°T - - - L6S°69€ 910°6S £T89LIT
TL866L°0T (S61°08) 9€6'97L €0E°ST6T 1S6°0ST'T LL8'OT6'9
%0708 % 6F %I0F %0 6% %t ee %0 6F
£S8PIT'CT (e6€°00T) (STH61%) 608°7I8‘T 681°6T6°C 19€°ShL'E 66T LLIFT
(0S0°€059) - (LL9'D rad! (891°CLT 1) (£0$°T£0°T) {Fr8°961°1)
€06°LIL 6T (06€‘001) (8EL‘OFE) L99CISL LSETOTS POR9LL Y EPIPLERT
(618°LE) - - - $06'9 (LEO°LD) (€L9°LT)
(gs8°T18) - - - (6¥€cE) (€LT°ED) (1€£°997)
(T€0v96°0) (06£°001) (98+°¢91) (Zer €T 1) (290°919) (152°651) (116'069)
(€£65°695°¢) - - - (9LTF%18) - (L1E°65LD)
(000°cLE"S) - - - (000°FSL) (000°LLY) (000°THFY)
(898¢+0) - - - {095‘sy) (998°ctr) (Tr'zst)
LILb98'6 - - SFi‘o1 EPSLYST PETT08'EC S68POSY
L86'P99°S - - SHI°01 ESHILE vE1°T08'¢ SSTI8Y'1
0EL’66TY - - - 060°9LT°1 - OF9°€T0E
L¥E'SSETE - (TST'1I81) PS6°LEOE 9ST°cT6's LOSISEY TT6'E0TCT
(T1€95T°TIH) - (8T¢¢98‘D)  (I10°SIE'E) (PO sse 1) - (89+°7¢LS6T)
(0Tr'LLY 6) - - - (£89°€06°T) (086°68) (€sL°L8Y°L)
080°2L99 - - - CEO8YT - SH'81¢
LY9EH0°LT - - - 9L8°TTEE - [LOTTLET
8€E°C9TIT - - - TEY'SPEy LES LOV'T 6STTSH'ST
EI0'ETT'STY - 9LTTRIT $96°TSC9 POCSSETTI - 891 TTL S6T
SIIIATIS
e 3.1) 10 SAINATD 1diS - U0
[0 EMM_*&EME vwa.how%E u.:WU hoﬂw—cg qeIe1d ZZ4d T8 MEM&EWM
Tendisy

9)B0SSE WOIJ 2IRYS JJOI]
uoneurmyy

SPUAPIAIP 29599] WAL FeUew O[OJMI0g
aoyemImyd 3.10Jaq daeys Aneduro)
aTBYG §,1081U0)

XB} I9}JE JU0IUT JIN

SOXE ], SIIOOU]

SIXE [, 2100y sSurmiey
Juounredw] 19SSV [BIOURUL]
SUOISIAOIL] JuaSuriuc))

sasuadxy Suneradp

VED

$99] JuswaSeuRUI OI[OJ}10
sasuadxg SuneredQ) 1810
swodu] sunerdQ g0,

swoouj dunerado oyO

QUIOOUT 93]

HM*CH-H 550.15)

SODTATAS puUR POOS - §1[ES JO 150))
asuadx;y 1801010

ures SuIunoosiq

uien) UoTRZTLINDIS

SONTANOER JUOURUL UIOL] SUWIOOU]
S9DIAIOS PUE SPOOT - INUSAIY 89S

0T0T dung og

S{qery U panss] ATEWSHQ

SUSTIRIS [EIOURTL] oY) JO GONE[SURL]

20T “0€ 2unf o papus potiod oy 10] SIUSWLIRS [BIOUELT] PAIBPI[OSTO.) 3] 01 SARON
(£snotacsd spusunssau] [eroneurg Joy Surpioy renden) eareg) ('V'S) SUIp[oY [BIouBLT 198)u0)



Translation of the Financial Statements

Originallv Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

21-

Income Tax

For six months

For three months

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Charged to Income Statement
Current income tax 62,947,772 43,926,925 31,460,226 15,654,818
Deferred income tax 372,438 259,144 316,664 787,921
Treasury Bills Tax 14,856,083 14,979,257 7,290,818 6,200,706
Total 78,176,293 59,165,326 39,067,708 22,643,445
Deferred Tax Assets
30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Property plant and equipment (depreciation) 255,709 301,313
Total 255,709 301,313
Deferred Tax Liability
30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Financial portfolio (FVOCI) 26,451,901 22,657,182
Total 26,451,901 22,657,182
Effective tax rate
30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Net profit (before tax) 305,931,815 192,270,650
-Income tax calculated based on net 68,834,657 43,260,896
income
Tax adjustments effect 9,341,636 15,904,430
25.55% 30.77%

Effective tax rate
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Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

22- Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders of the
Parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Net Profit for the period after taxes for owners of the 218,358,568 126,907,763
company
Weighted average No. of ordinary shares 1,175,086,067 1,167,594,798
Earnings per share 0.19 0.11
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Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)}

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

24- Right of use assets

Buildings Total
EGP EGP

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2021 234,761,482 234,761,482
Additions for the period 314,061,365 314,061,365
Disposals during the period (78,448,377) (78.448,377)
Total cost in 30 June 2021 470,374,470 470,374,470
Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation for the period 15,088,179 15,088,179
Accumulated depreciation for disposals (2,829,268) (2,829,268)
Total Accumulated depreciation in 30 June 2021 12,258,911 12,258,911
Net beok value
Net as at 30 June 2021 458,115,559 458,115,559

*The additions including lease contract dated June 1,2021 with Misr Real Estate Assets for the property
no. 15 Qasr El Nile St. with total space 10,947, with contract term of 15 years and 10 months, with
annual rental payment of 19,705,716 EGP and annual increase of 10% starts from the second year till
the end of the contract term.

25-

Goodwill

Company

Sarwa
Securitization

Contact Auto
Credit

Contact Leasing

Description

*On Sep.2006 Contact Credit company (Contact Auto Credit ) previously
acquired Contact Egyptian International for Trade and Investment in a
manner that its share capital participation percentage reached 96.8 % (the
latter owns %81 of the «capital of Sarwa Securitization)
*On Dec. 26, 2013 Contact Credit sold (transferred the ownership of)
Egyptian International for Trade and Investment at 99.9% to Sarwa Capital
for financial investments (parent company)
*On May 20, 2020 Sarwa Securitization merged into Egyptian International
for Trade and Investment.

On Nov 10, 2013 the Company acquired 999 990 shares from minority
shareholders with a total share capital participation percentage of 99.9%

On March 31,2015 the Company acquired 1 999 990 shares representing
99.995% of the share capital participation percentage.

The total goodwill amounted to EGP 25 302 524 as at the acquisition dates on June 30, 2021
compared to EGP 25 302 524 on December 31, 2020.
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Translation of the Financial Statements

Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financial Holding (8.A E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

26-

Investments in Associates

Company's Name

Bavarian Contact Car Trading
Star Auto Credit

Ezz El-Arab - Contact Financial

Egyptian Credit Service
Total
30-Jun-21

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

31-Dec-20

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Note:

Capital Y% of Capital Capital % of Capital
Participation =~ Participation  Participation Participation
30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
14,813,423 %49 23,246,803 %49
5,361,037 %33.4 5,935,879 %33.4
8,130,467 %49 10,783,521 %49
4,748,960 %49.9 4,938,275 %49.9
33,053,887 44,904,478
Bavarian ' Ezz Egyptian
Contact Car M Elarab/Contact Credit
—————— Credit : " .
Trading -_— Financial Service
90,223,880 26,417,270 38,856,828 10,793,095
(63,374,784) (9.183,131) (24,651,535) (784,093)
26,849,096 17,234,139 14,205,293 10,009,002
Bavarian Ezz Egyptian
Contact Car &M_I.lto Elarab/Contact Credit
e Credit — " .
Trading _— Financial Service
126,516,519 26,208,520 50,577,016 10,342,076
(72,603,176) (6,481,310) (27,779,604) (463,550)
53,913,343 19,727,210 22,797,412 9,878,526

The share of (Contact credit Company) a subsidiary of the parent company, the losses in both
Motor Care Services and Motor Care Egypt exceeded the share capital participation percentage.
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Translation of the Financial Statements
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Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

27-  Financial Investments

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20

Financial investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (equity 10,145,259 10,145,259
instruments)
Financial investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (debt 1.096,012,754 1,174,162,819
instruments)

1,106,158,013 1,184,308,078

A) Financial Investments Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCD
(Equity Instruments)

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Egyptian Mortgage Refinancing company 6,413,750 6,413,750
A I venture 3,731,509 3,731,509
10,145,259 10,145,259

* It is a mandatory investment valued at cost since it is not listed in an active market and its fair value
cannot be reliably determined considering the following:

-Companies which are not listed in the stock exchange.

-The group owns a small stake in these companies a matter which restricts access to detailed and accurate

information to conduct the evaluation process and measure the fair value.
-Net equity is positive as per the financial statements a matter which reflects the absence of any indicators

of impairment in the investment value.

B) Financial Investments Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (Debt

Instruments)

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Treasury bills 982,500,737 1,071,593,769
Securitization bonds 11,451,845 11,448,639
Treasury bonds 102,060,172 91,120,411

1,096,012,754 1.174,162,819
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Translation of the Financial Statements
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Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E} (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

28- Debtors and Other Debit Balances

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Within a vear ”——mn Within a year “——mn
pisurance Companies - debit 7 797 455 - 7,197,055 -
Prepaid expenses 38,809,630 5,767,897 30.401,166 15,988,901
Advance payments to suppliers 27,544,407 - 34,800,810 -
Accrued revenue 28,999,902 - 28,803,495 1.844,055
Advances and Imprest 9,684,256 - 7,646,968 -
Tax authority - Current accounts 4,954,216 - 3,837,979 -
Other debit balances 53,650,545 4,353,880 40,020,121 4,306,408
Insurance operations receivables 60,918,879 - 18,394,411 -
Deposits with third party 3,163,406 120,880 869,520 200,780
Acquired assets 8,823,985 - - -
Advance payment for investments 4,998,500 - - -
Discounting debit balances 209,966,122 = 86,320,786 -
Less: Impairment (19.447.454) - (19.299,149) -
Net 439,863,489 10,242,657 239,593,162 22,340,144
Total 450,106,146 261,933,306
The summary for the movement of provision for doubtful debts is as follows
30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
1 January 19,299,149 1,797,055
Provided during the period 148,305 11,502,094
30 June 15,447,454 19,299,149
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Contact Financial Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period snded on June 30, 2021

29-

Loans and Receivables

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Loans and recewableg measured at fair value through 1,813,673.713 1.680.318.807
other comprehensive income
Loans and Receivables measured at amortized cost 939,737,370 721,847,847

2,753,411,083 2,402,166,654

Loans and Receivables Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Receivables-goods 665,479,602 803,831,553
Leasing- accounts receivable 883,376,582 642,599,986
Receivables-mortgage 264,817,529 233,887,268

1,813,673,713 1,680,318,807

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20

Within a vear More than one Within a vear More than one

—nn 4 year year DA vedr year
Receivables-goods 207,738,116 60.804,967 140,206,434 18,202,103
Receivables-services 7,010,604 - 4,498,366 -
Leasing- accounts receivable 77,403,188 78,684,990 65,857,030 59,055,775
Factoring -accounts receivable 170,625,418 18,498,957 121,929,330 729,434
Receivables-mortgage 52,883,889 671,816,234 45,368,553 586,873,731
Transferred financial rights 24,505,218 13,376,743 36,247,824 532,957
Less:
Deforred Intorest & deferred —(133.775,734)  (290.642.419)  (99381810)  (243.352.603)

Insurance

Allowance for impairment (19,192,801) - (14,919,277) -
Net 387,197,898 552,539,472 299,806,450 422,041,397

Total 939,737,370 721,847,847
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30- Securitization surplus

In the ordinary course of business activity; Contact Credit Group perform securitization process of
Loans and Receivables resulting in some financial assets being transferred to Sarwa Securitization
(Special Purpose Entity) on behalf of the bondholders.

The following is a list of the financial assets and liabilities pertaining to the outstanding securitization
transactions of Sarwa Securitization.

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Description of trausferred financial assets/liabilities that
were disposed (derecognized)
Financial Rights Portfolios 3,105,236,993 4,253,155,591
Amounts collected for custodian 24,644,526 24,512,191
Cash held with custodian 271,059,824 344,129,814
Total Financial Assets transferred 3.400,941,343 4,621,797,596
Less: bonds issue (3.377,802,468) (4,592,289,814)
Deferred interest of bond loan (1,146,672) -
Surplus of securitization processes 21,992,203 29,507,782

The financial assets transferred to Sarwa Securitization meets the financial assets derecognition
criteria offset between financial assets and liabilities was made for the group's consolidated financial
statements.

Bank's Escrow Account

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Treasury bills 29,892,945 8.940.566
Reserve account 9,120,449 3,993,291
Proceeds from discounting process 10,131,766 4,591,767
Less: Allowance for impairment of financial assets (49,145,160) (17.525,624)

Total - -

Represents a reserve account relating to receivables discounted at banks. The reserve is managed
(whether increased or decreased) in line with the contractual terms related thereto.
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31- Cash on hand and at Banks

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Banks - current accounts 17,286,334 124,608,977
Cash on hand 13,221,400 4,903,749
Time deposit | 40,134,359 4,417,967
Expected credit losses | (152,116) (155,455)
Total 130,489,977 133,775,238

32- Paid in Capital

- Authorized capital amounts to EGP 600 Million with par value 10 EGP per share.
- Paid in and issued capital amounts to EGP 69 601 510 distributed over 6 960 151 shares with

a par value of EGP 10 per share. All shares are ordinary shares and all issued shares are paid
in full.

-~ On 14 April 2016 the capital was increased by 1 750 161 shares with a total par value of EGP
17501 610 and was recorded in the commercial register.

- On 5 April 2017 the capital was increased by 968 378 shares with a total par value of EGP

9 683 780 and was recorded in the commercial register.

- On 14 May 2018 the extraordinary general assembly approved increasing the authorized
capital by EGP 400 million to EGP 1 billion and the paid in-capital by EGP 3 213 100 to EGP
100 million in addition to a share split of 62.5:1 changing the par value from EGP 10 per
share to EGP 0.16 per share making the total number of shares 625 million instead of 10

million. This was recorded in the commercial register.

- The company’s extraordinary general assembly dated 14 August 2018 approved the initial
public offering of the company on the Egyptian Stock Exchange through a private and public

placement.

The offering was executed on 11 October 2018 with a total of 295 170 731 shares owned by
some of the company’s shareholders by 47.2% with total proceeds of EGP 2 172 456 581
EGP 700 million of which are to be reinvested in the company in a capital increase at the

same price of the offering.
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- On 17 October 2018 the Board of Directors with an authorization from the extraordinary
general assembly dated on 14 August 2018 approved the increase of the issued and paid —in
capital by 95 108 696 shares at EGP 7.36 per share which represent EGP 0.16 nominal value
per share and EGP 7.2 increase in premium reserve per share for a total amount of
EGP 700 000 003 which is represented in .

- The increase took place on 5 November 2018 the total proceeds were recorded as EGP
15217 391 in the share capital account with the balance of EGP 684 782 612 recorded in the

share premium account.

- On May 9, 2019 the issued and paid-in capital have increased by a decision of the Company's
Board of Directors held on March 3, 2019. The increase of the Company's capital through
the issuance of 28 million shares at nominal value of LE 0.16 amounted to EGP 4 480 000
the total value of the increase is fully funded from the balance of retained earnings. The 28
million shares issued for the bonus and incentive system approved by the Egyptian financial
regulatory Authority (FRA) on 26 February 2019. The issued and paid-in capital amounted
to LE 119 697 391.

- On October 3 2019 the issued and paid-in capital have increased by a decision of the
Company's Board of Directors held on May 13, 2019 and authorized by companies
extraordinary general assembly dated September 8, 2019 through distribution of frec shares
to shareholders according to their investment percentage by 3 shares for every 5 shares to be
financed from retained earning balance with nominal value 0,16 Egyptian pound. The issued
and paid-in capital amounted to 191 515 840 EGP distributed by 1 196 974 000 shares.

- On February 15, 2021 the authorized capital was adjusted to be 950 million EGP rather than

1 billion EGP and was recorded in the commercial register on March 28, 2021.

- The following schedule represents the ownership structure at the financial position date:

Company Name No. of Shares Amount Percentage
Consolidated Financial Holding 724,601,986 115,936,318 60.53%
Orascom investment holding 350,088,786 56,014,206 29.25%
Other shareholders 77,419,140 12,387,062 6.47%
ESOP-unassigned 21,887,933 3,502,069 1.829%
ESOP-assigned 22,976,155 3,676,185 1.921%
1,196.974,000 191,515,840 100%
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33- Reserves

Legal reserve
Fair value reserve

Share premium reserve

33-1- Legal Reserve

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
69,736,983 63,172,149
141,053,853 128,002,362
778,652,966 766,590,522
989,443,802 957,765,033

Legal reserve balance on June 30, 2021 amounted to EGP 69,736,983 compared to EGP 63,172,149
as of December 31, 2020. According to Law 159 for the year 1981 and the Company’s articles of

association 5% of annual net profit is transferred to the legal reserve. Upon the approval of the general

assembly the Company may stop such transfer when the legal reserve reaches 50% of the issued

capital.

33-2 Fair value reserve

Opening balance
Effect of implementing EAS 47
Other comprehensive income for the period

Ending Balance
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30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
128,002,362 -
- 242,343,027
13,051,491 (114.340,665)
141,053,853 128,002,362
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33-3 Share premium reserve

The company's capital was increased on April 14, 2016 April 5, 2017 November 5, 2018 and
October 3, 2019 which resulted in share premium reserve as follows:

Description

Share preminm reserve as at December 31 2015 -

No. of increase in shares 1,750,161 shares
Value of increase in capital 17,501,610  EGP

Share premium amount 28,780,324 EGP

Share premium reserve as at December 31 2016 28,780,324 EGP
No. of increase in shares 968,378 shares
Value of increase in capital 9,683,780 EGP

Share premium amount 35,486,386  EGP

Share premium reserve as at December 31 2017 64,266,710 EGP
No. of increase in shares 95,108,696  shares
Value of increase in capital 15,217,391  EGP

Share premium amount 684,782,612 EGP

Share premium reserve as at December 31 2018 749,049,322 EGP
No. of increase in shares 448,865,304  shares
Value of increase in capital 71,818,449 EGP

Share premium amount 1,359,820 EGP

Share premium reserve as at December 31 2019 750,409,142 EGP
Share premium ESOP 16,181,380 EGP

Share premium reserve as at December 31 2020 766,590,522 EGP
Share premium ESOP 12,062,444  EGP

Share premium reserve as at June 30 2021 778,652,966 EGP

According to law No.159 for year 1981 and its executive regulations the amount of share premium
is to be added to the legal reserve of the company up to reaching 50% of the issued capital. Any
excess is recognized as a special reserve and cannot be distributed as dividends,
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34- Retained Earnings

35-

The retained earings include legal reserves and general reserves of subsidiaries which were classified
as retained earnings for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements however
they should not be distributed. And their amount reached EGP 64,054,656 as at June 30, 2021 and EGP
48,470,248 as at December 31, 2020.

In addition, the retained earnings include the value of the retained earnings for Sarwa Securitization
company with an amount of EGP 18,293,083 as at June 30, 2021 and EGP 19,132,158 as at December
31 2020 the prospectus of the various securitization issuances stipulated that Sarwa Securitization
company is not allowed to distribute any dividends unless after all the liabilities of the bondholders are
completely paid through the custodian bank without prejudice to its rights in distributing dividends
resulting from surplus in other securitization portfolios.

Loans and Overdrafts

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20

More than one More than one

VWithin a year Within a year

!ear zear

Medium term loans 420,870,839 868,658,510 285,735,140 577,483,186
Bank overdraft 97,823,720 - 118,050,377 -
Egyptian Mortgage 7,564,639 375,026,451 6,329,810 340,878,172
Refinancing Company
Syndication loan - - 770,814 15,717,849

526,259,198 1,243,684,961 410,886,141 934,079,207
Total 1,769,944,159 1,344,965,348
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36-

Suppliers and Other Credit Balances

Suppliers

Accounts Receivables -
Credit balances

Tax authority - Current
account

Custodian®

Accrued interest

Insurance and reinsurance
companies

Accrued expenses

Deposits held with third
party

Insurance companies- credit
balances

Default reserve-discounting
portfolios

Dividends payable
Other credit balances

Deferred revenues

Total

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Within a vear _—mn Within a year Moreﬁn one
48,789,627 - 44,659,720 -
13,345,712 - 17,252,349 -
17,908,502 - 35,243,829 -
37,555,199 - 25,895,465 -
9,751,531 - 11,155,086 -
39,972,417 - 25,674,041 -
38,261,831 - 45,653,450 -
4,564,182 - 5,134,498 -
2,944,845 - 1,250,746 -
39,094,580 - 51,770,935 -
580,618 - 1,618,498 -
40,392,812 4,904,876 30.819,016 4,949,160
25,235,213 - 892,857 5,282,738
318,397,069 4,904,876 297,020,490 10,231,898
323,301,945 307,252,388

* According to the custody agreement concluded between the group and the custodian it was agreed that the
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group will collect the installments related to customers’ contracts which are transferred to Sarwa
Securitization company on its behalf. They shall be subsequently transferred to the custodian; the
aforementioned balance represents the amounts collected till the financial position date that were transferred
to the custodian in the subsequent period.
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37- Lease liability

Balance at 1 January 2021

Additions for the period

Interest expense

Payment in the period

Disposals during the period

Total lease liability at 30 June 2021

Lease liability Total

contracts B
232,186,595 232,186.595
314,061,365 314,061,365
7,230,652 7,230,652
(42,528,022) (42,528,022)
(74.968,970) (74,968,970)
435,981,620 435,981,620

*The minimum for the future expected lease payments related to the lease contracts, note no. 42.

38-Related Parties

38-1 Financial Position Balances

Related Party

Due from Related Parties
Star Auto Credit

Motor Care Egypt
Bavarian Contact Car Trading

Ezz El-Arab - Contact Financial
Other sharcholders

Total

38-2 Income Statement Transactions

Bavarian Contact Car Trading

Management and incentive fees
Star Auto Credit
Management fees

Ezz El-Arab / Contact Financial

Management fees

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Relation Nature
Associate 33.4% 3,517,778 2,904,184
Associate 40.1% 2,240,117 2,440,201
Associate 49% 10,635,009 15,801,018
Associate 49% 3,330,763 2,144,012
30,283 30,283
19,753,950 23,319,698
30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Expense (Revenue)
Associate 49%
(2,289,077) (4.243,148)
Associate 33.4%
(82,719) (209,265)
Associate by 49%
(442,373) (769,344)
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38-3 Bonus and Salaries for Executive Management:

The value of bonus and salaries for the executive management of the group for the period ended
at June 30, 2021 amounted to EGP 21 057 823.

39- Other provisions

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Beginning balance 34,543,171 32,516.412
Provided during the period 3,090,140 6,542,301
Provision used during the period (4.826,425) (4.515,542)
No longer required (9.:751,009) -
Ending balance 23,055,877 34,543,171

Other provisions relate to legal tax and other CXposures - see accounting policy in note 46-23

40- Tax Position
First: Corporation income tax:

- Tax returns of Contact financial holding (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments (S.A.E)
previously) were submitted for the years since the inception of the business activity till 2019 on the due
dates according to law No. 91 for year 2005.

- Years 2010-2014: are currently being inspected by the Tax the Inspectorate.

- Years 2015-2016: the company was accounted by estimation, and was appealed on at the legal dates,

and waiting for the reinspection session for these years.

Second: Salary tax:

- The Company fegularly settles the tax pay on the legal due dates and preparation of the data required
for inspection is in process.

Third: Stamp tax

- The inspection was completed until 2016 and the due tax differences were paid.

- Currently preparing the inspection for the years 2017/2018.

41- Letter of Guarantee

30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20
Letter of Guarantee - Suppliers 3 000 000 3 000 000
Total 3 000 000 3000 000
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42- Commitments and Liabilities

Minimum payments for future leases expected for future trade centers under lease are due as follows:

30-Jun-21 _ 31-Dec-20
First year 34,322,522 35,100,851
Second year 37,553,173 35,896,904
Third year 58,887,195 36,344,698
Fourth year 62,604,118 37.472,518
Above 5-year 769,469,756 262,236,709
Ending balance 962,836,764 407,051,680

43- Guarantees and Securities

- Contact Auto Credit provided joint guarantees for each of the associated and subsidiary companies

operating under the credit sale system and the credit limit is granted in the name of Contact Auto
Credit provided that the purpose of such credit limit and the use thereof shall be directed towards
financing the activity of the Group and/or financing the activity of any of the associated companies.
Borrowing shall be carried out in the name of each company that uses the credit facility separately and

within the limit of the total credit facility granted to Contact Auto Credit.

- Each company remains committed to pay the liabilities and assume any losses and risks resulting from

nonpayment. The balance of credit facilities and loans granted to the companies in consideration of
the joint guarantee amounted to EGP 502 520 672 as at June 30, 2021 compared to EGP 327 056 503
as at December 31, 2020. |

44- Objective and Policies of Financial Risks Manacement

This disclosure presents information about to the extent to which the group is subject to the following
risks resulting from using the financial instruments the group’s goals policies and operations regarding
the measurement and management of such risks and the group’s capital management as well.

The group’s board of director is responsible for setting the framework for the risk management process
and its monitoring. The group’s top management is the responsible for setting and monitoring the risk
management policies.

The internal audit committee monitor the compliance of the group’s top management with policies and
procedures adopted for the financial risk management process and the adequacy of the current policies

and procedures to the expected financial risks.
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44-1 Credit Risk
Credit risks are the financial losses incurred by the Company in the event that customer or the

counterparty do not fulfill a or his/its obligations under of the terms and conditions of the financial
mstruments contract

The group mainly faces credit risks from clients’ receivables notes receivable sundry debtors other
debit balances dues from related parties as well as its financing activities including deposits at
banks and financial institutions. -

First: Receivables Balances

- The credit risk is managed through the group’s policies procedures and control structure related to
risk management. As the credit worthiness is being measured for each client separately through
conducting field survey to assure good reputation and credit worthiness of client and his ability to
repay all his financial liabilities. The credit limit is determined according to this evaluation. The
client’s outstanding accounts are monitored on continuous basis. Impairment study is conducted
at the financial position date.

-As for the financial Assets that are considered to be credit-impaired the ECL provision covers the
amount of loss expected to be incurred by the Group. The evaluation of ECLs is carried out on a
case-by-case basis for non-homogeneous portfolios or through applying portfolio-based standards
in respect of individual Financial Assets in these portfolios via the Group’s ECL Model for
homogeneous portfolios.

-Future economic forecasts are to be considered while calculating ECLs. The lifetime expected
losses are estimated based on the probability-weighted present value in respect of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group under the contract; and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive.

Amount arising from expected credit loss (ECL)

Inputs Assumptions and Techniques used for estimating

Significant increase in credit risks

When determining whether the risk of default in payment pertaining to a financial instrument
increased significantly since initial recognition the group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis based on the group’s historical experience and experts
credit assessment submitted as a kind of forward-looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk occurred
due to an exposure to credit risk or not.

Credit Risk Grades

The group allocates a grade for each exposure to a credit risk based on a varlety of data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of default in payment applying experienced credit
judgements and sound recovery process. In some cases, the group allocates a grade exposure to
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credit risk using the flow rate methodology. These factors vary depending on the nature of the
exposure.

Risk grades are defined and calibrated in a manner that the risk of default increases exponentially
as the credit risk deteriorates so for example the difference in risk of default between credit risk
for buckets 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference between credit risk for buckets 2 and 3.

The table below shows the group’s grades and their risk definitions;

Rating Grades Bucket Description
1 Current Stage 1
2 1-30 Stage 1
3 31-89 Stage 2
4 >00 Stage 3

Structure of probability of default (PD) Model

By applying the flow rate methodology; default in payment of dues is deemed as fundamental
input for determining the structure of PD for each bucket. The Group collects performance and
default information about its credit risk exposures customers based on the historical analysis for

each kind of asset and line of business.

The Group employs statistical models to analyze the data collected by the Group and generate
estimates to determine he remaining lifetime PD on exposures and how that outcome is ta expected
to change by the passage of time.

These analyses include identifying and comparing the relationships between changes in default
rates and changes related to key macro-economic factors as well as in-depth analysis of the impact
of certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience) pertaining to the risk of default and most
exposures are related to the main factors of macroeconomics.

The management team should annually identify the macroeconomic variables that may impact the
group’s financial assets.

The Management Team of the Group will assess the base case, best case and worst-case forecasts
of the selected macroeconomic indicators and how likely they are expected to improve based on
trends in the indicators and macro-economic commentaries.

In determining the ECL for other assets the group applies the loss ratio model to estimate ECLs.
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Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly or not
The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary according to the
kind of financial assets portfolio and the quantitative and qualitative factors including a backstop
based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial
recognition as follows:

The group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs when the default in payment
is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since
the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received.

The group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit
risk by performing regular reviews to confirm that:
o The criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risks before classifying
the financial instrument as being i in default;
® The criteria do not align with the point in time when the defaulting assct becomes 30 days past
due; and
* There is no unwarranted volatility in provision for loss due to the transfer of the financial
instrument from 12-month PD (stage 1) to lifetime PD (stage 2).
The contractual terms of a loan may be amended for a number of reasons mcluding changing
market conditions customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit
deterioration of the customer. An existing loan whose terms were modified may be derecognized
and the renegotiated loan shall be recognized as a new loan at fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy.

When the terms of a financial asset are modified, and the modification does not result in
derecognition the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly
reflects comparison of:

* Its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with

* The remaining lifetime PD which is estimated based on data at initial recognition and the

original contractual terms.

The group renegotiates the issue of loans granted to customers who encounter financial difficulties
(referred to as ‘forbearance activities) to maximize collection opportunities and minimize the risk
of default. Under The group’s forbearance policy loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis
if the debtor is currently in default of its debt or if there is a hi ghrisk of default there is an evidence
that the debtor exerted all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the
debtor is expected to be able to meet the amended terms.
The amended terms usually include extending the matutity date changing the timing of interest
payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to
the forbearance policy.
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As for financial assets modified as part of the group’s forbearance policy the estimate of PD
reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the group’s ability to collect interest
and principal and the group’s previous experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this
process the group evaluates the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual
terms and considers various behavioral indicators.

Definition of default
The group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
* The borrower is past due for a period of equal / more than 90 days regarding any obligation
towards the group
* Relying on data developed internally and obtained from external sources,

Inputs of assessment regarding whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance

may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

The Group’s definition of default is in line with the definition applied by the Company for the
statutory (regulatory) capital purposes

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the terms structure of the following variables:
* Probability of default (PD);
* Loss given default (LGD);
s Exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical model’s external data
and other historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward looking information as described
above.

Probability of Default is a measure of the likelihood that an obligor will default on a contractual
obligation. PD estimate are calculated based on statistical models. These statistical models are
based on internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors.

Generally, the Group uses two approaches in estimating PDs: Internally generated PDs (where
internal data is available) and External PDs (where internal data is unavailable). For the purposes
of PD estimation for financial assets it was adopted as the basis for each category of similar
characteristics. _

As aresult, every category with similar line of business would have the same PD.,

In case of External PDs market data are used to derive the PDs for counterparties. (if the data are

not availabie)
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If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then this will lead to a change in the
estimate of the associated PD.

Loss Given Default is the measure of the percentage of the outstanding balance that the Group
may lose in the event of a default. The Group estimates LGD based on the history of recovery rates
of claims against defaulting counterparties.

Exposure at default is an estimate of the outstanding remaining loan balance at the time of default.
Multi-period EADs are a collection of EAD values referring to different time periods over the
lifetime of a financial asset,

The group estimates the multi-period EAD for on-balance sheet exposures based on the contractual
repayment cash flows and expectation of future prepayment.

For off-balance sheet exposures the EAD includes the amount drawn as well as potential future
amounts that may be drawn under the contract. In this case the group will estimate the credit
exposure equivalent (CEE) of all off-balance sheet exposures. This is performed using the credit
conversion factor (CCF). CCF is the rate at which off-balance sheet commitments crystalize and
become on-balance sheet exposures.

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis the financial instruments are
ranked on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

* Instrument type;

* Buckets gradings (categorizing portfolios in groups or classes);

* Collateral type;

* Default in payment

* Date of initial recognition;

* Remaining term to maturity;

* Line of business

As for portfolios in respect of which the group has limited historical data such as investment
securities - debts Money market balances kept at other banks selected external rating agencies are
used to -complete the interally available data.

Incorporation of Forward-Looking Information (FLD

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit
risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement
of ECL. Based on advice from the management team and consideration of a variety of external
actual and forecasted information the group formulates a forecast of the future trend of relevant
economic variables as well as a range of other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves
developing one or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities
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of each outcome. External information inchudes economic data and forecasts made available by

external sources.

The base case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used by the group
for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more
optimistic and more prudent outcomes. Where there are no significant correlations between the
macroeconomic variable and default the group performs - this analysis according to expert
judgement. In cases where the group uses expert judgment due to the imposed restrictions it shall
keep exploring other options to arrive at a statistical basis for mcorporating FLI into its ECL
computation.

Furthermore, the group periodically carries out stress testing in respect of the economic changes
in a more prudent manner to measure the repercussions of ECL

The group identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio
of financial instruments using an analysis of historical data and estimated relationships between
macro-cconomic variables credit risk and credit losses. The economic scenarios used as at 31 Dec

2020 and 30 June 2021 are as follows:

31 December 2020

30 June 2021

Average actual wages (%
change pa)

Domestic Credit Growth (%)

Exchange rate LCU: $ (end-

Base 15.69 (Stressing by 1

Base 15.69 (Stressing by 1

period) %Standard Deviation) %Standard Deviation)
rrc Base 15.81 (Stressing by 1 Base 15.81 (Stressing by 1
Exchange rate LCU:USS (av) %Standard Deviation) %Standard Deviation)
Government consumption (% Base 7.971 (Stressing by 1 Base 7.971 (Stressing by 1
of GDP) %Standard Deviation) % Standard Deviation)
Gross domestic product Base 3994.315 (Stressing by 1 | Base 3994.315 (Stressing by
constant prices %Standard Deviation) 1 %Standard Deviation)
con(grri%isfifgiii iﬁiﬁmeg‘tﬁ h Base -3.6 (Stressing by0 .5 Base -3.6 (Stressing by0 .5
gr %Standard Deviation) %Standard Deviation)

of GDP (% points)

Growth in average wages
(LCU; annual %)

Import prices (% annual

Base -21.8 (Stressing by 1

Base -21.8 (Stressing by 1

change pa; US$) %Standard Deviation) %eStandard Deviation)
Inland direct investment (USS) - -
Inward FDI flow (% of fixed Base 11.8 (Stressing by 1 Base 11.8 (Stressing by 1
investment) %Standard Deviation) %Standard Deviation)
.. Base 11 (Stressing by 1 Base 11 (Stressing by 1
Lending interest rate (%) Standa:r(d Deviatigon))r Standa:r(d Deviatigon})]
Private consumption (% of Base 85.799 (Stressing by 1 Base 85.799 (Stressing by 1
GDP) YeStandard Deviation) % Standard Deviation)
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Private consumption
contribution to actual GDP
growth (% points)

Base 1.7 (Stressing by 1%
Standard Deviation)

Base 1.7 (Stressing by 1%
Standard Deviation)

Public debt (% of GDP)

actual effective exchange rate

Base 105.7 (Stressing by 1

Base 105.7 (Stressing by 1

%Standard Deviation) %Standard Deviation)
Base 3.57 (Stressing by Base 3.57 (Stressing by
[V
Actual GDP (% change pa) Standard Deviation) Standard Deviation)
Base 8.296 (Stressing by 1 Base 8.296 (Stressing by 1
%Standard Deviation) Range | %Standard Deviation) Range
Unemployment rate Between 8: 8.296 Between 8: 8.296

Predicted relationships between the key indicators default and loss rates on various portfolios of
financial assets were developed based on analyzing historical data over the past 5 years if available.

44-2 Liquidity Risk
The liquidity risk is represented in the factors that could affect the ability of the Group to repay all

or part of its liabilities.

The management of the group observes the cash flows and the financing and liquidity requirements
of the group. The aim of the group is summarized in striking a balance between the continuity of
finance and flexibility through borrowings from banks. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves and obtaining facilities pertaining to loans: the matter which is
performed through monitoring expected and actual cash flows and matching the maturities of
financial assets and liabilities.

The group has enough cash to pay for the expected operating expenses which include financial
liabilities.

44-3 Market risk
Market risk arises from the instability of the fair value of future cash flows in respect of the

financial instrument as a result of the changes in market prices. Examples for foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk these risks may affect the income of the Group. The financial instruments
that are affected by market risk include interest bearing loans and deposits. The purpose of
managing market risk is to manage and control risks within acceptable limits and at the same time
achieve rewarding returns. The group does not keep or issue derivative financial instruments.

44-3-1 Interest rate risk _
Interest rate risk arises due to the fluctuations in the fair value of the future cash flows of the

financial instruments as a result of the changes in the market interest rates. The management of the
group reduces the interest rate risk through matching the similarity between the nature of interest
rates applied by the Group to its clients (fixed/variable interest rate) and the nature of interest

rates the liabilities (borrowings) of the group towards the lending financial institutions.
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44-3-2 Foreign currency risk

This risk is considered to be limited as the value of the financial instruments in foreign currencies
and the various transactions that take place in a currency other than the presentation and functional
currency are not deem end as relatively influential from a Management perspective.

45- Bases of Measurements
- The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial

instruments that are measured at fair value amortized cost or cost as appropriate.

46- Significant accounting policies
- The accounting policies described below have been applied consistently during the years

presented in these financial statements.

46-18ubsidiaries
- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The group controls an entity when it is

exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which
control commences until the date on which control ceases.

46-2 Non-controlling interests
- Non-controlling interest are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s

identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
- Changes in the group’s interest in subsidiaries which do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

46-3 Loss of control
- When the group loses control over a subsidiary it derecognizes the assets and liabilitics of the

subsidiary and any related Non-controlling interest and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

46-4 Investments accounted with equity method

- Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint
venture.

- Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence but not  control
or joint control over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in
which the Group has joint control whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the
arrangement rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

~ Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They

are initially recognized at cost which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
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recognition the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of equity accounted investees until the date on which
significant influence or joint control ceases.

46-5 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
- Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized income and expenses arising from

Intra-group fransactions are eliminated. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with

equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

46-6 Financial instruments

Classification and Measurement

The Group determines the nature of the business model by considering the way in which
the financial assets are managed to achieve the business objective as determined by
management.

At initial recognition financial assets have been classified and measured according to:
* Amortized cost
* Fair value through other comprehensive income. (F VTOCT) and
® Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The financial assets have been classified according to how they are managed (the entity's
business model) and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at: amortized cost fair vahie
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or FVTPL on the basis of both the Group’s
business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flows
characteristics of the financial asset.

- A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

® The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following
conditions:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
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® The contractual terms of the financial asset give tise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

- All other debit instruments assets will be classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial reco gnition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

The Group may irrevocably elect to measure equity investment which is not classified as
trading investments to be as a fair value through other comprehensive income at injtial
recognition. And this choice will be made on an instruments by instruments basis.

- All other equity instruments will be classified as fair value through profit or loss.

In addition to that the group may irrevocably elect to designate a financial asset that will
be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss in the initial reco gnition ifin such a case this
reclassification will lead to prevent accounting mismatch.

Business Model Assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed,
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

» The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies
in practice especially to know whether these management policies concentrate to gain
the contractual interest or reconcile financial assets period with the financial liabilities
period which finance these assets or target cash flow from selling the assets.

¢ How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s
management.

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model and the financial assets
held within that business model and how those risks are managed.

The frequency volume and timing of sales in prior periods the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity.

Meanwhile the scope of the Group is not limited to the information related to sales activity
separately but the overall assessment of how the goal that was announced by the Group to
manage financial assets can be achieved as well as how to realize cash flow must be taken
into account.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at fair value through profit or loss because they are
neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell financial assets.
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Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment ‘principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs) as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest the group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or the amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial assets — Subsegquent measurement gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net
gains and losses including any interest or dividend income are reco gnised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets arc subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCL On derecognition gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
arecovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are reco gnised
in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses including any interest expense are recognised in
profitor loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit
or loss.
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Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Group could enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its
statement of financial position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial lability when
its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially

different in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is reco enized
at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred, or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment

The Group applies both the general and simplified approaches to measure expected credit
loss on financial assets that are recognized at amortized cost and debt instruments that are
recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income. The financial assets can
transfer between three stages according to changes in credit quality since initial
recognition.

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized in the Consolidated Income
Statement within the credit losses expenses.

Simplified approach model

With regards to trade receivables related to fees and commission the simplified approach
model for determining the impairment is performed in two steps:

* Any trade receivable in default is individually assessed for impairment; and

¢ A general reserve is recognized for all other trade receivables (including those not
past due) based on the determined historical loss rates and carry forward losses
expectations.
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General approach model

The general model impairment requirements of EAS No. (47) apply to all credit exposures
that are measured at amortized cost or FVOCI except the positions covered by simplified
model as abovementioned.

For purposes of the impairment policy below these instruments are referred to as
(“Financial Assets™),

The determination of impairment losses and allowance moves from an incurred credit loss
model whereby credit losses are recognized when a defined loss event occurs under
previous accounting standard to an expected credit loss model under EAS No. (47) where
allowances are taken upon initial recognition of the Financial Asset based on expectations
of potential credit losses at the time of initial recognition

EAS No. (47) introduces a three-stage approach to impairment for Financial Assets that
are not credit-impaired at the date of origination or purchase. This approach is summarized
as follows:

Stage 1: 12 months expected credit loss:

Stage 1 includes financial assets on initial recognition and that do not have a significant
increase in credit risk since the initial recognition or that have low credit risk. For these
assets expected credit loss is recognized on the gross carrying amount of the asset based
on the expected credit losses. For these assets expected credit loss is a result of default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit loss - not credit impaired:

Stage 2 includes financial asscts that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but those do not have objective evidence of impairment. For these
assets” lifetime expected credit loss is recognized but interest is still calculated on the
gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime expected credit loss are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit loss - credit impaired:

Stage 3 includes financial asscts that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. For these assets’ lifetime expected credit losses are recognized.

46-7 Segment reporting
- An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from

which it may eamn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with any of the group’s other components whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the group’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete

financial information is available.
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46-8 Foreign currency tramsaction
- Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the group at

the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

- Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the financial statements date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary

iterns that are measured based on historical cost in foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognized in profit or loss.
46-9 Lease contracts
- The Group has applied EAS 49 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under EAS 20.

The details of accounting policies under EAS 20 are disclosed separately.

Policies applied from 1 January 2021
- At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the
definition of a lease in EAS 49. This policy is applied to contract entered in to, or after 1 Jan
2021,

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a
single lease component. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
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reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will
be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and
type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
of rate as at the commencement date; amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee; and the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group
is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed
lease payment.

When the lease liability is premeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The Group presents right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in “property, plant and
equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of financial
postition.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has clected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of
low — value assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Group recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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Policies applied before 1 January 2021

Rental expense is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the contract,

46-10 Revenue recognition
Policies applied from 1 January 2021
The Group recognizes revenue under Standard No. (48) Revenue from Contracts with
Customers using the following five steps model:

Step 1: Identify the A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more patties that
contract with customer creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for
every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify the A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to

performance obligations | transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group

transaction price. expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocation of For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group

transaction price. allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an

amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
e€xpects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance

obligation.
Step 5: Revenue The Group recognizes revenue (or as) it satisfies a performance
recognition ' obligation by transferring a promised good or service to the customer

under a contract.

Interest income
- Interest income is recognized in the income statement on the accrual basis using the Effective

Interest Rate Method.

Effective interest rate method
- This is a method for computing the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability

(or a combination of financial assets or financial liabilities) and allocating the interest
expenses and interest income over the lifetime of the financial asset or financial liability using

the effective interest rate.

Effective interest rate
- This is an accurate rate used to discount future payments expected to be paid or collected over

the expected lifetime of the financial instrument (and a shorter period where appropriate) in

order to determine the present value of financial asset or financial liability).
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Dividends income
Revenues from dividends resulting from group investments are recognized on income

statement on the date on which the right of the company to collect the value of these profits

arises.

Securitization profit
The revenue from securitization transactions is recognized when the terms of dereco gnition of

the financial asset for the asset that has been securitized are fulfilled. The revenue from
securitization process is measured by the value in the increase in the consideration compared
to the book value of the securitization portfolios on the date of transfer.

Insurance Premium Revenues:
The insurance premium revenues are recognized starting from the date of issuing the insurance

policy revenue is recorded within the limits of the value of insurance premium related to the

period/year.

Policies applied before 1 January 2021

a- Cars goods sold and rendered services

Revenues from selling cars and goods are recognized in the Income Statement when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership is transferred to the purchaser. The revenues from
rendered services are recorded in income statement when the services are rendered. No
revenue shall be recognized in case there is a doubt in respect of the reimbursement of the
amount in consideration of this revenue or the related costs or in case the administrative
connection regarding the sold cars and goods shall continue to exist.

Sales are represented in the value of cars and goods to be sold to customers at the cash selling
price; however the difference between the cash selling price and the total sale value are
recognized as deferred interest income that are presented as a deduction from the total
indebtedness due from customers . These interests shall be recorded as revenues in the income
statement at the effective interest rate until the maturity date

The same basis shall be applied in recording the revenues of other services represented in
providing insurance services and maintenance for the customers (Contact Service Club)
through other companies specialized in this field and revenues from financial consulting
services.

The value of the revenue is measured at fair value of the received or accrued consideration of

the group.
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b- Interest income

- Interest income is recognized in the income statement on the accrual basis using the Effective

Interest Rate Method.

c- Effective interest rate method

- This is a method for computing the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
(or a combination of financial assets or financial liabilities) and allocating the interest
expenses and interest income over the lifetime of the financial asset or financial liability using

the effective interest rate.

d- Effective interest rate

- This is an accurate rate used to discount future payments expected to be paid or collected over
the expected lifetime of the financial instrument (and a shorter period where appropriate) in

order to determine the present value of financial asset or financial liability).

e- Dividends income

- Revenues from dividends resulting from group investments are recognized on income
statement on the date on which the right of the company to collect the value of these profits

arises.

f- Securitization profit

- Therevenue from securitization transactions is recognized when the terms of derecognition of
the financial asset for the asset that has been securitized are fulfilled. The revenue from
securitization process is measured by the value in the increase in the consideration compared

to the book value of the securitization portfolios on the date of transfer.

g- Insurance Premium Revenues:

- Theinsurance premium revenues are recognized starting from the date of issuing the insurance
policy revenue is recorded within the limits of the value of insurance premium related to the

period/year.

46-11 Expenses

Interest expense
- Interest expense on loans is recognized in the income statement using the effective interest

rate method.
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46-12 Emplovee benefit

- Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)

- According to the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Group held on
May 14 2018 the articles of association of the Group were amended in a manner that allows
the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting of the group to adopt one or more of the
following systems to reward employees managers and executive board members of the group
and its subsidiaries:

- Granting bonus shares

- Granting shares with special prices or easy way payments.

- A promise to sell shares after a specified period or periods of time and certain conditions are

| fulfilled in accordance with the group 's promise to sell.

- The General Assembly Meeting determines how to provide the shares necessary for the
implementation of any of these - (ESOP) systems whether through the issuance of new shares
through the group’s purchase of its shares or through the transfer of cash reserve - or part of it
as well as converting the retained earnings into shares whose value - is used to increase the
issued capital. The decision of the extraordinary general assembly meeting determines the
conditions for entitlement to the prescribed shares in accordance with the (ESOP) including
the conditions related to the tenure of the position the degree the competence and other
conditions. '

The group may entrust the management of the system to any of the following:

- Licensed custodians

- One of the companies working in securities field

- labour union of employees holding capital participations.

Short — term emplovyee benefits
- Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is

recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Contribution Plans
- Obligations of defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense when the related

service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payments is made,

- The group pays contributions to the Public -Social Insurance Authority for their employees
based on Social Insurance Law No 79 for the year 1975. The employees and employers
contribute to this plan under this law with a fixed percentage of wages. The group's
commitment is -confined to the value of their contribution. and. The group’s contribution

amount shall be charged as an expense to the income statement - according to accrual basis.
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Employees’ Share in Profits
- The holding Group pays 10% of its cash dividends to its employees as a share in profits

provided that it must not exceed the total employees’ annual salares. Profit sharing is
recognized as a dividend distribution through equity and as a liability during the fiscal period -
wherein the group’s shareholders approved these dividends.

46-13 Income tax
- The recognition of the current tax and deferred tax as income or expense in the profit or loss

for the period except in cases in which the tax comes from process or event recognized - at
the same time or in a different period - outside profit or loss whether in other comprehensive
income or in equity directly or business combination.

Current income tax
- The recognition of the current tax for the current period and prior periods and that have not

been paid as a liability but if the taxes have already been paid in the current period and prior
periods in excess of the value payable for these periods this increase is recognized as an asset.
The current taxable liabilities (assets) for the current period and prior periods measured at
expected value paid to (recovered from) the tax authority using the current tax rates (and tax
taws) or in the process to issue in the end of the financial period. Dividends are subject to tax
as part of the current tax. But do not be offset for tax assets and liabilities only when certain
conditions are met.

Deferred tax
- Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.
- Deferred tax is not recognized for;
* Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial reco gnition of goodwill.
* Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not:

1. A business combination.

2. And not affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.
* Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries associates and joint

arrangements to the extent that the group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

- Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses unused tax credits and deductible

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
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available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on
business plans for individual subsidiaries in the group. deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used.

- Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences using current tax rate or future expecting rate.

- The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the group expects at the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

46-14  Property. plant and equipment and depreciation
1) Recognition and measurement
- Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any accumulated impairment losses.

- Ifsignificant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

- Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
profit or loss.

2) Subsequent expenditure
- Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits

associated with the expenditure will flow to the group.

3) Depreciation
- Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less

their estimated residual values using the (straight-line method) over their estimated useful
lives for each item and is generally recognized in profit or loss.

- Land is not depreciated.

62



Transiation of the Financial Statements
Originally Issued in Arabic

Contact Financtal Holding (S.A.E) (Sarwa Capital Holding for Financial Investments previously)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended on June 30, 2021

Estimated depreciation rates for each type of assets for current and comparative periods are as follow:

Asset Depreciation years
Building 20
Furniture 10
Computers 3-5
Machinery & equipment 5
Fixtures 10
vehicles 5

Leasehold improvements are depreciated - over the lease contract period or the useful life of
the asset whichever is lower.
Depreciation methods useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted if -necessary.

46-15  Projects in Progress
- Projects in progress are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment in their value if any.

Costs include all costs directly related to - the acquisition of the asset and bringing it to be
ready for its intended use and to be used in the purposes for which it is acquired. Projects -in
progress are charged to fixed assets when they become ready for their intended use.

Then the group starts its depreciation using the same bases used to depreciate the same types

of assets,

46-16 Goodwill

- Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the

excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquired
assets at the acquisition date. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units expected to generate cash and benefit from this combination. Cash-
generating units are tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill previously
allocated to the unit and then to reduce the value of the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Taking into account that an n
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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- Ondisposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the profit or loss on sale. This applies as well on
investments in associates where goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the

investment.

46-17 Earnings per share
- Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the parent group (for their participation in the company’s ordinary shares) over

the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period/year.

46-18 Dividends
- Dividends distribution is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the period in

which the dividends are declared.

46-19 Impairment

Impairment of non-financial Assets

- Ateach reporting date the reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
biological assets inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

- For impairment testing assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash generating units. Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to cash generating units or groups of cash generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

- The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.

- An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit

exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash generating unit on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed in the subsequent period. For other
assets an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or

amortization) if no impairment loss had been recognized in previous periods.

46-20  Cash flows
- The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. For the purpose of

46-21

preparing the cash flows cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, bank current
accounts demand deposit which not exceed three months. Bank overdraft balance “that is
settled when it is required or considered part of company’s cash management” is considered

as items that presented as a deduction for the purpose of calculating cash and cash on hands.

Legal reserve
According to the requirements of Companies law No. 159 for the year 1981 ;the group’s

statutes provides for deduction of a sum equals to at least 5% of the annual net profit for the
formation of the legal reserves such deduction will be ceased when the total reserve reaches
an amount equals to at least half of the group’s issued capital. Once the reserve falls below -

this amount deduction shall resume.

46-22  Capital

46-23

1) Ordinary Shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a
deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction are
accounted for in accordance with EAS No. (24) “Income Tax”.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as

a result of past events and that it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation the costs to settle related obligations are probable and a
reliable estimate is made of the amount of the obligation. The provisions balances are revised
at the financial position date and is adjusted when it is necessary to present best estimate of
these provisions.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
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47- Significant events — COVID 19

Many countries around the world including Egypt were exposed during 2020 to a state of
slowdown and economic contraction as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and the
governments of the world including the Egyptian government made packages of
precautionary measures to prevent the spread of the epidemic. These procedures led to a state
of economic slowdown at the global and local levels which affected its impact on all activities
in different ways.

Regarding to the group’s activities the effects are:

1- Reducing the number of employees working at the group’s headquarters and branches.

2- Collection rates for some clients working in sectors directly affected by the crisis are
potentially impacted.

3- The group’s volumes of new financing to clients are impacted.

4

The finances of corporate clients have been affected.

(%]
i

The suspension of services by some government agencies in particular notary public

services new vehicle registration and Courts.

Regulatory precautions measures taken as follows:

1- The Financial Regulatory Authority took measures o ease the impact on clients
of mortgage leasing and factoring companies directing companies to provide an
option to clients to defer all their obligations for a period of six months without
delay penalties.

2-  On March 22, 2020 the Central Bank instructed banks to defer clients’ loan
obligations for a period of six months without delay penalties. This is within the
framework of the precautionary measures taken by the Central Bank of Egypt to
confront the effects of the Corona virus.

And based on the specific effects referred to above, it may have a significant impact on the
assets, liabilities and business results of the company’s financial statements during the year of
2020 and the following periods.

The size and nature of the most significant or potential financial impacts of this risk on the
items of the financial statements and the group’s activities during the following periods are

summarized in:
- Clients’ credit default risk.

- Defaults or breaches in the financial obligations with lenders.
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However besides the measures taken by the government to support these activities such as
reducing the interest rate and postponing the payment of debts the group’s management has
taken several measures to mitigate the above risks and reduce and mitigate the impact on its

financial position as follows:

1- The group has provided the necessary technological infrastructure for employees so that

they can perform their work outside the group’s headquarters and branches.

2- All group’s financial covenants have been tested and the group’s ability to fulfill its

commitment to all financial covenants with lenders has been verified.

3- The group has measured the possible delay rates and appropriate provisions have been
made to mitigate any potential increase in default rates that may arise with the

management periodically reviewing collection rates.

4- In coordination with the Financial Regulatory Authority and other companies operating
in the securitization market Sarwa Securitization on behalf of the bond holders moved
to adjust the tenors of outstanding securitization bonds to enable various underlying
portfolio’s services to adjust the terms of their contracts without affecting the credit

rating of issuances.

3- The group approached the clients of finance leasing real estate mortgages and factoring
portfolios to determine whether they want to defer their financial dues in order to
proceed in implementing the FRA’s decision after fulfilling all necessary

documentation.

6- The group coordinated with lenders regarding the Central Bank’s decision to defer loans

in case such a step is needed.

48- Comparative figures
Comparative figures have been reclassified to match with the changes in the presentation used in

the current period.

67



